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HF Group Plc
Report of the Directors
For the year ended 31 December 2021

The directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements of HF Group
Plc {the Company ) and its subsidiaries (fogether, the Group) for the year ended 31 December
2021.

Incorporation

The Group is domiciled in Kenya where it is incorporated as a private group limited by shares
under the Companies Act, 2015. The address of the registered office is set out on page 1.

Directorate
The directors who held office during the year and to date of this report are set out on page 1.

Board meetings attendance for the year ended 31 December 2021

HF Group Board meetings Total
Aftendance
Date 10/3/21 26/03/21  18/04/21 3821 311421
Dr. Kaushik 5
v v v v
Manek "
Gladys Karuri v v v 3
Adan Mohamed v v v 3
Constance v v v v v 5
Gakonyo
Dr. Peter Munga v v v 3
Dr. Benson v v v 5
Wairegi
Felister Kembi v v v v 5
Robert Kibaara v v vy v v 5
Principal Activities

HF Group Plc was registered as a non—gperating helding company (under the Banking Act
Cap .488), regulated by the Central Bank of Kenya (CBK} in August 2015. The holding
company oversees the operations of the Group subsidiaries, which include HFC Limited, HF
Bancassurance Intermediary Agency, HF Development and investment Limited (HFDI), First
Permanent East Africa Limited (FPEAL) and the HF Foundation. The Group structure was set
up to enhance corporate governance, provide oversight in management of the subsidiaries
and ensure optima! growth at both Group and subsidiary levels.

The Group is listed on the Nairobi Securities Exchange (NSE), and has four operational
subsidiaries;

= HFC Limited - licensed to carry out the business of morigage finance as well as banking
services under the Banking Act.

+« HF Deveiopment and Investment Limited — (formerly known as Kenya Building Society
Limited) undertakes real estate development.

e HF Bancassurance Iniermediary {formerly HF Insurance Agency Limiled) -
Bancassurance solutions

» HF Foundation Limited - The Group’s social investment arm



HF Group Plc
Report of the Directors
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Principal Activities (continued)

The subsidiaries’ principal activities are to encourage and promote the flow of both private
and public savings into financing home ownership, corperate and retail banking solutions,
development and selling of residential houses, insurance agency business, and social
investment.

Business review

During the year, the Group reported a loss after tax of Shs 593,281,000 {2020: Loss of Shs
1,706,863,000). Interest income earned during the year was Shs 3,875,185,000 representing
a 8% decline from Shs 4,281,711,000 earned in 2020, while the interest expense incurred
during the year declined by 13% to Shs 2,085,238,000 from Shs 2,389,249,000 in 2020. The
net loan book at the end of year was Shs 34,692,625,000 compared to Shs 36,998,473.000
in 2020. The nen-performing lcans (NPL) reduced by Shs 2,126,087,000 frem Shs
10,798,847,000 in 2020 to Shs 8,672760,000 in 2021. Deposits reduced by Shs
2.818,088,000 to Shs 38,316,520,000 as at the end of the year.

The business environment was challenging in 2021 mainly due to the negative impact of the
Covid-19 pandemic on the economy and business with some sectors harder hit than others.
The economics environment improved in 2021 with the rellout of vaceinations and phased
removal of government restriction There still remains significant uncertainty due fo the risks
assogsiated with emergence of new sfrains, knock on impact of the pandemic and the Russian
{Ukraine conflict such as disruption to supply chains and increases in commodity prices.
However, with the continued improvement of the economy, the Bank is expected to get on track
to achieving its strategic initiatives.

Financial results and recommended dividend

The Group loss for the year of Shs 583,281,000 (2020 Loss of Shs 1,706,863,000). No inferim
dividend was paid during the year (2020: Nil}. The directors do not recommend payment of a
final dividend {2020 Nil).

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group principal risk and uncertainties together with process that are in piace to monitor
and mitigate those risks where applicable can be found under Note 4 to the financial
statements.

Future outlook

The Covid-19 pandemic continues to affect the Group's operations and the way of doing
business. In spite of the pandemic’s adverse effects, the Group is focusing en ensuring that
the business weathers this storm and alse supports our stakeholders, particularly the affected
customers.

Environmental, sccial and employee matters

Our environmental and social risk policy guides our commitments to environmental protection
across all group subsidiaries. The Group views environmental sustainability from two
perspectives:

1 We conduct business in a manner that protects our employees, the communities wherg we
gperate and the environment, and

2.We offer products and services that deliver efficiency contributing to an overall reduction in
the usage of natural resources.

3



HF Group Ple
Report of the Direclors
For the year ended 31 December 2021

The environmental and social risk policy has been incerporated into our lending process and
is aligned with recognised international performance standards. Our loan applications
therefore include, among other issues, an environmental assessment and are in compliance
with regulatory requiremenis. The Group has taken several measures to ensure safety of
employees and the continuity of operations during the Covid-1¢ pandemic. These include
work-from-home  arrangements, social distancing within the workplace, abolishment of
physical meetings, provision of hand sanitizers and face masks as well as temperature

screening at all entry points.
Statement as to disclosure to the group’s auditor
With respect to each director at the time this report was approved:

a) thereis, so far as the director is aware, no relevant audit information of which the Group's
auditor is unaware; and

b) the director has taken all the steps that the direcior ought to have taken as a director s0
as to be aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group's auditor
is aware of that information.

Terms of appoeintment of the auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP continue in office in accordance with the Company's Articles
of Association and Section 721 of the Companies Act, 2015

The directors monitor the effectiveness, objectivity, and independence of the auditor. The
directors also approve the annual audit engagement contract which sets out the terms of the
auditor's appointment and the related fees.

Events after the reporting year
There have been no events after the reponting date that require adjustment or disclosure to
these financial statements.
By order of the Board
A 5 = i
oty CO o

SECRETARY 3 , March 2022



HF Group Pl
Directors’ remuneration report
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Information subject to audit

The directors’ remuneration report has been prepared in compiliance with the Group's
remuneration policy, Capital Markets Authority Code of Corporate Governance Guidelines on
Directors’ remuneration and the Companies Act, 2016. The remuneration is reviewed
regularly to ensure that it is within the existing market rates. This is done to ensure that
individual directors are effective and continue 10 pursue the business strategy. Performance
of each director is evaluated annually and communicated appropriately. Ali directors are
expected to observe attendance of the board meetings and make valuabie contributions
depending on each member's area of speciality. The remuneration is disclosed through the
periodic publications made by the Group.

There has been no change to the rate of remuneration for the non-executive directors during

the year.

Directors’ remuneration paid during the year was as per the table below

Non- executive directors

Year ended 31 December 2021

Year ended 31 December 2020

Sitting Silting

Fees allowance Total Fees allomekaice Total
Shs000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000
Dr. Benson Wairegi, EBS 488 1,778 2,266 488 1,404 1,882
Dr. Peter K Munga 488 1,323 1,811 488 624 1,112
Adan D Mohamed 266 1,098 1,364 648 1,560 2,208
Constance Gakonyo 488 1,656 2,144 487 900 1,387
Kaushik Manek 875 3,800 4 875 4875 208 5,083
Felister Kembi 488 1,360 1,848 488 1,188 1,684
Gladys Karuri 200 434 634 488 1,040 1,528
Prof. Olive Mugenda 244 758 1,002 . - -
3,637 12,307 15,844 7,962 6,932 14,894

Executive director
2021 2020
Robert Kibaara Shs'000 Shs'000
Salary 40,843 39,072
Non-cash bengfits - 3,072
Gratuity 9,450 § 000
50,283 51,144

Total




HF Group Pic
Directors' remuneration report
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Information not subject to audit

The basic pay and gratuity of the executive director is as per the negofiated employment
contract. Other non-cash benefits include club subscription, security and medical cover. Travel
and other reasonable expenses {including any associated taxes) incurred in the course of
performing HF Group official duties are reimbursed. This is meant tc ensure that the package
is competitive.

Non-executive Directors’ remuneration policy and framework

Non-Executive directors are engaged on the bhasis of a letter of appointment. Itis the policy of
the Board of directors that non-executive directors are paid directors’ fees and sitting
allowances but are not eligible to participate in any of the Group's bonus, share option or
pension schemes.

Detaiis of the policy on fees paid to our nen-executive directors are sef out in the table below:

Directors fees and sitting allowanices | Policy framework

To attract and refain non-executive | The director's fees and sitting allowances paid
directors of the highest calibre and having | to non-executive directors are determined by
the necessary skills and expertise to | the Board of Directors, with recommendations
exercise independent judgement on | from the Group Nomination and Governance
issues that promote the Group's | Committee.

objectives.

Members of the various commitiees are also |
eligible tc receive an additional sitting
allowance.

The fees payable are reviewed periodically by
the Group Nomination and Governance
Commitiee o ensure that the fees remain
competitive and in line with remuneration of
other non-executive directors in the industry.
Time commitment and responsibility are also
taken into account when reviewing fees.

Travel and expenses for non-executive
Directors for Group related assignments are all
met by the Group.

Approval of the directors’ remuneration report

The directors confirm that this report has been prepared in accordance with the Kenyan
Companies Act, 2015, Capital Markets Authority ({CMA) Code and listing rules and reflects the
disciosure requirements under [FRS.

By order of the Board

ﬂ. L)X )
CS%(?F;ETARY = ELMarch 2022



HF Group Ple
Directors’ remuneration report
For the year ended 31 December 2021

The Companies Act, 2015 requires the directors fo prepare financial statements for each
financial year that give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of Company
as at the end of the financial year and of its profit or loss for that year. It also requires the
directors to ensure that the Group and Company keeps proper accounting records that: (a)
show and explain the transactions of the Group and Cempany; (b} disclose, with reasonable
accuracy, the financial position of the Group and Company, and (c) enable the directors 1o
ansure that every financial statement required to be prepared compiies with the requirements
of the Companies Act, 2015.

The directors accept responsibility for the preparation and presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner
required by the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015. They also accept responsibitity for:

(i) designing, implementing and maintaining such internal control as they determine
necessary to enable the presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;

{iiy sefecting suitable accounting policies and applying them consistently. and

{ii) making accounting estimates and judgements that are reasonable in {he circumstances.

The directors have disclosed in Note 2{a) of the financial statements matters reiating to the use
of going concern basis of preparation.

The directors acknowledge that the independent audit of the financial stalements does not
relieve them of their respoensibilities.

Approved by the Board of directors on 2. I_March 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

P Reola s o
Prof.Olive Mugiinda Robert Kibaara
Chairman Director

G Lo O

Regina Anyika
Company Secretary

“'“__Ehm';.'on Wairegl
Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HF GROUP PLC
Report on the audit of the financial statements

Qur opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of HF Group Plc (the Company) and its
subsidiaries {together, the Group) set out on pages 13 to 118, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position at 31 December 2021 and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash fiows for the year then ended,
together with the Company statement of financial position at 31 Degember 2021, and the Company
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows for the
year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion the accompanying financial statements of HF Group Plc give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group and the Company at 31 December 2021 and of their financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2015.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Qur responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
stafements section of our report.

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Internationa! Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants {inciuding International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Cede) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in Kenya. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion,

Key audit mafters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our epinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Expected credit losses on loans and

advances to customers

Loans and advances to customers comprise a
significant portion of the Bank’s total assets. The
estimation of expected credit losses (ECL) on
loans and advances !0 customers requires
management's judgment in the assumptions that
are applied in the models used to calculate ECL.

We evaluated the appropriateness of the
methodology applied by management in the
estimation of expected credit losses for
consistency with iIFRS 9.

We evaluated the appropriateness of
segmentation of the loan portfolio.

We validated management's basis for staging of
loans and advances.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. PwC Tower, Waiyaki Way/Chirome Road, Westiands

P O Box 43963 — 00100 Nairobi, Kenya
T: +254 (20)285 5000 F: +254 {20)285 5001

ww. pe.com/ke

Panners: € Kench B Kimaca M Mugasa A Murage F Muiv PNgahu 8 Mioroge SO Nober's B Okundi K Seiti




| =

pwc

INDEPENDENT AUDRITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HF GROUP PLC (CONTINUED)

Key audit matters {confinued)

Hy - g e e RE e 2THFy
|CFe OUE i add lged the Kay St msiie

The policies for gstimating ECL are explained in
notes 2 (j} and 4 {a) of the financial statements.

The key areas where significant judgement has
been exercised and therefore, an increased level
of audit focus applied, include:

lo the assumptions applied in deriving the
| probabilities of default (PDs), loss given
! default (LGD) and exposures at default

{EAD]) for the various segments;

+ the judgments made to determine the staging
of facilities in fing with IFRS 9. In particular,
the identification of Significant Increase n
Credit Risk {"SICR") and Defauit requires
consideration of quantitative and qualitative
criteria. This determines whether a 12-month
or lifetime PD is used;

o the relevance of the
information assumption used in the models;
and

« the reasonableness of the timing and amount
of the present value of expected future cash
fiows on loans and advances to customers,
which is the key driver for LGD for stage 3
loans.

Due to the significant impact of management
judgments apptied in calculating the ECL, we
{lesignated this as a key audit matter in our audit

forward-looking |

| We tested, on a sampie basis, the accuracy of
the computation of PDs, and the completeness
and accuracy of the underlying historical data
applied in the computation.

We reviewed the suitability of forward-looking
data used in estimating PDs together with the
accuracy of its application in the PD computation
process.

For forward-looking information, we assessed
the appropriateness of the model, including
assumptions applied; we corroborated the data
using publicly available information; and
assessed the reasonableness of the weightings
applied to different scenarios to reflect the impact
of COVID-19.

WWe tested, on a sample basis the computation of
I EAD for both on and off-balance shee! items.

We tested, on a sample basis, the
reasonableness of the present wvalues of
expected future cashflows of loans and advances
used in the estimation of LGD.

We recomputed, on a sample basis, expected
credit iosses for loans and advances io
customers.

We assessed whether the disclosures in the

financial statements on the key judgements and
assumptions were adequate.

We recomputed, on a sample basis, expected
credit losses for loans and advances !o
customers.

We assessed whether the disclosures in the
financial statements on the key judgements and
assumptions were adequate.




-

PwcC
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HF GROUP PLC (CONTINUED)

Other information

The other information comprises Group and Company information, Report of Directors, Directors’
renumeration report, Statement of directors’ responsibilities which we obtained prior to the date of this
auditor's report, and the rest of the other information in the Annual Report which are expected to be made
available to us after that date but does notinclude the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.
The directors are responsible for the other information. Cur opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not
and wilt not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowfedge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information we have received prior to the date of
this auditor’s report we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the rest of the other information in the Annual report and we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the maiter fo those charged with governance,

Responsibilities of the dirgctors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act,
2015, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
confinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unfess the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or o cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibiiities for the audit of the financial statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 2 whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducled in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with |SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We aiso:

s |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due io fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive o those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invoive
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

# Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internai control.

10
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HF GROUP PLC {CONTINUED)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (conlinued)

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conciude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
hased on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disciosures in the financiai statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Owr conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern,

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

s Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the Group's financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for cur audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical reguirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought o bear on our independence

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the Group’s financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation preciudes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in exiremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Report on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act, 2015
Report of the directors

In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ report on pages 2 to 4 is consistent with the financial
statements.

1
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HF GROUP PLC {CONTINUED)
Report on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act, 2015 {continued)

Directors’ remuneration report

In our opinion the audilable part of the directors’ remuneration report on pages 5 to 6 has been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act, 2015.

. S:L

'ﬁﬂ Kang'e Baiti, Practicing certificate P/1652
igning pariner responsible for the audit

For and on bahalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Certified Public Accountants
Nairobi

31 2022

12






HF Group Pl
Financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Consolidated statement of profit or ioss and other comprehensive income

Interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income

Credit impairment iosses

Net interest income after credit impairment losses
Fee and commission income

Net trading income
Other income

Net operating income
Employee benefits
Depreciation and amortisation
Cther operating expenses
Share of loss in joint ventures

Loss before income tax

Income tax credit

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax

ftems that may be reclassified to profit or loss

Fair value loss on investments in financial instruments
measured at fair value through other comprehensive

income {FVOCI)
DCeferred income fax

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Revaluation surplus on property and equipment
Deferred income tax

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Annualised basic and diluted earnings per share ~ Shs

13

Note

6
6

22

@ oo~

11
12
10
21

13

31

31

2021 2020
Shs’000 Shs’000
3,875,185 4,281,711
(2,095,238)  (2,399,249)
1,879,947 1,882,462
(280,645) (405,069)
1,599,302 1,477,393
215,935 212,195
48,350 85,270
221,748 198,799
2,085,335 1,973,657
(1,182,536}  (1,227,163)
(455,968) (500,392)
(1,306,844)  (1,925,851)
(15,740) (96,133}
(875.753)  {1,775.882)
282,462 69,019
(593201} (1,706,863)
(299) (75.772)

90 22,732

(209) (53,040)
137,076

(6,854

130,222

(593,500)  {1,629,681)
(1.54) (4.44)



HF Group Plc
Financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Company statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Other income
Employee benefits
Depreciation and amortisation

Other operating expenses

Loss before income fax

Income tax credit

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive loss for the year

14

Note

8
10
12

13

2021 2020
Shs’000 Shs’000
131,752 126,183
(56,019) (56,553)
(134) (132)
(109,669) (308,833)
(34,070) (239,335)
12,573 11,097
(21,487) (228,238)
(21,497) (228,238)




HF Group Plc
Financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Consolidated statement of financial position

Assets

Cash and balances with banks
Placements with other banks
Investment in government securities
Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances ic customers
Invesiment in joint ventures

Other assels

Investment in property fund
Investment property

tnventories

Property and equipment
Right-of-use asset

Intangible assets

Current income tax

Deferred income tax

Total Assets

Liabilities

Deposits from customers

Beposits from banks

Other liabilities

Dividends payable

Borrowings

Government of Kenya income notes
Derivatives liabilities

Lease liabilities

Shareholders’ Equity
Share capital

Share premium

Statutory credit risk reserve
Revaluation reserves

Fair value reserves
Accumulated losses

Total Liahilities and Shareholders’ Equity

2021 2020
Note Shs'000 Shs'000
16 2,708,074 2284217
17 33,311 202,435
18 8,550,168 7,105,617
22 - 201,509
22 34,692,625 36,796,964
21 1,544,339 1,635,079
23 1,074,741 983,390
24 380,207 324,251
29 1,391,875 1,263,268
25 462,658 514,422
19 1,133,965 1,237,680
35 456,489 543,174
20 518,873 703,254
13 342,746 344,830
26 1,612,447 1,305,058
52,903,518 55,445,245
27 37,714 914 39,544,490
27 601,608 1,180,118
28 1,658 870 1,410,654
15 246 6,361
30 4,298 348 3,628,227
32 52,860 52,860
37 28,982 E
35 579,403 650,751
44835230 46,883,461
3 1,923,071 1,923,071
31 4,343,512 4,343,512
3 3,413,617 3,663,888
3 1,012,125 1012125
3 13,763 13,872
{2,737,700) {2,384,780)
7,968,288 8,561,788
52,803,518 55,445,249

The financial statements on pages 13 - 118 were approved for issue by the Beard of directors on
J_ March 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

NAM o

Prof.Olive Muggmida

Director
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HF Group Plc
Financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Company statement of financial position

2021 2020
Note Shs'000 Shs'000
Assets
Cash and balances with banks 16 2317 20,196
Investment in subsidiaries 21 8,767 594 $,762,604
Other assets 23 10,355 1645
Property and equipment 19 402 418
Current income tax 13 46,947 41,682
Deferred income tax 26 48,777 37,204
Total Assets 9877392 9,863,839
Liabilities
Other liabilities 28 308,928 267,763
Dividends payable 15 246 6,361
308,174 274,124
Shareholders’ Equity =
Share capital 31 1,923,071 1,923,071
Share premium h 4,343 512 4343512
Retained sarnings 3,301 A3k 3,373,132
9,568,218 9,589,715
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity 8,877,392 9,863,838

financial statements on pages 13 - 118 were approved for issue by the Board of directors on
March 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Buangedls . on)

Prof.Clive Musfenda Robert Kibaara
Chairman Director
,/e%m W <
QO W &
BEnscn Wairegi Regina Anyika
Director Company Secretary
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HF Group Plc
Financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Company statement of changes in equity

Year ended 31 December 2020
At start of year

Loss and total comprehensive
income for the year

At end of year

Year ended 31 December 2021
At start of year
Loss and total comprehensive

income for the year

At end of year

Share

Share

Retained

capital premium earnings i
Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000 Shs' 000
1,823,071 4,343,512 3,551,370 9,817,853
. . {228,238} (228,238}
1,823,071 4,343,512 3,323,132 9,589,715
1,823,071 4,343,512 3,323,132 9,589,715
(21,497) (21,497}

1,923,071 4,343 512 3,301,635 9,568,27
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HF Group Plc
Financiat statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Consolidated statement of cash flows

Net cash flows from operating activities
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment

Purchase of investment property

Proceeds from sale of equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of disposal of investment
property

Net cash flows used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts of borrowed funds
Principle repayments of borrowings

Dividend paid
Principal lease payments

Net cash flows used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at start of year
Effects of exchange rate differences

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

19

Note
33

18
28

18

29

29
15

33

33

2021 2020
Shs'000 Shs'G00
(210,846) 1,156,198
(9,727) (32,409)
(171.756) (37,848)
19,805 58
(47,758) (66,680)
27,883 -
(181,553) (136,879)
1,514,574
(844,452) (2,175,498)
(6.115) (6.662)
(142,964) (130,488)
521,043 (2,312,646)
128,644 (1.293,327)
1,058,416 2,337,779
(1,287) 13,964
1,185,773 1,058,416




HF Group Plc
Financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Company statement of cash flows

Net cash flows {used in} / generated from operating
activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment

Net cash flows {used in} / generated from investing
activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid

Investments in subsidiaries-HF Bancassurance Intermediary

Net cash flows used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalenls al slarl vl year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

20

Note

33

18

14
14

33

33

2021 2020
Shs’ 000 Shs' 000
{8,74B) (4,288)
{118} :
(118) (4.288)
{6,115) (6,662)
{4,900) .
(11,015 (6,662)
(17,879) {(10,950)
20,196 31,156
2,317 20,196




HF Group Pl
Financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Notes

1

(a)

General information

HF Group Plc is incorporated as a limited company in Kenya under the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015,
and is domiciled in Kenya. The address of the Company'’s registered office is shown on Page 1. The
consoiidated financial statements comprise of the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”
or “Consolidated” and individually referred to as "Group entities").

The Group is primarily involved in mortgage lending, provision of banking solutions, property
development, bancassurance services, and social investment.

Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently appiied to all years presented, uniess otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial stalerments hawve been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Slandards (IFRS7). The measurement basis applied is the hislorical cost basis, except whera otherwise
slated in the accounting podicies below.

The preparation of financial staterments in conformity with IFRS requires the use of cartain critical accounting
eshmates. |t afso requires the directors 1o exercise judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. Tha areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in Note 3.

Going concern assessment

The economy in 2021 has seen a gradual recovery evidenced by improved business conditions in the
Kenyan private sector. The economic environment has improved due to the successful rollout of
vaccinations and phased removal of government restrictions. There still remains some uncertainty due to
risks associated with emergence of new Covid -18 strains this far and the knock-on impacts of the pandemic
and the Russia/Ukraine conflict such as disruption to supply chains around the worid and increases in
commodity prices.

Within the Group, we have seen an improvement in performance where the loss before income tax position
has decreased by Shs 800,129,000 to Shs 875,753,000 (2020: Shs 1,775,882.000). The Bank's capital
ratios have also improved. The core capital to !otal risk weighted assets ratio at 31 December 2021 was
8.25% compared to prior year where the ratic was 7.83% therefore the Bank was able to achieve the
minimum ratio of 8.00%, which does not include the 2.5% risk buifer that CBK expects instilutions to
operate above. The total capital to total risk weighted assets was 12.10% compared to prior year when the
ratio was 9.08%. The Bank however still continues to be in breach of the minimum regulatory capital ratios.
We have covered within this section how the Group intends to improve the capital rafios. The Bank's
liquidity ratio closed at 22 .87% as at end of the year 2021 an improvement from last year's position of
20.80%.

The Group’s lenders require compliance with regulatory ratios. The Group therefore remains in breach of
some of the financial covenants as a result of the regulatory breaches. The covenants breaches have been
disclosed under Note 30.

The Group has closed in a negative cashflows from operating activities position of Shs 210,846,000 mainiy
due to reduction of customer deposits as the Group strives 1o offload legacy expensive fixed deposits. This
has resulted to a reduction in interest expense by 13% to Shs 2.005,238,000 from Shs 2,389,249,000 in
2020
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Financiai statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Notes {continued}

2

(@)

Significant accounting policies {continued)

Basis of preparation(continued)

Going concern {continued)

We have set out below the actions we are taking to address business challenges:
Overall strategy

Towards the end of FY 2021, the Bank and the Group buard held a siralegy retreat 1o review the turnaround
strateqy and the performance year to date. Though there was improvement in the performance, the Bodnd
proposed new shisteyic nlenventions that will seo tho Ciroup grow ite performance almost tripie foid hetween
the period 2022-2026. Some of the propased inlerventions inclugde: - Repositioning the HFC Limited as a full-
senvice niche bank offering superior capabilities for the selected segments, scaling up the engines for Growth,
solidifying the capital base and investing in growing the businesses through increased investments. With these
investments, the financial performance is expected to triple the size of the bank in the next five years. The
bank has laid down the foundational background required to achieve this performance.

Non-performing loans (NPLs)

The Group continues to make significant progress in the recovery of non-performing loans and concerted
aMors have bean put an the NPL recovery effors. There is a lol of progress in the resolution of mathers under
fitigation, completion of staled projects, (and aggressive saée of the compieted office spacevesidantial
property), negotiabed sefilements, and realisation of collaberal either vide privae frealy or auction. The target
i 1o reackeo the ontire lagacy non-performing Inans {Shs 10 billion) over a 5-year period.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s gross non-perfarming loans reduced by Shs 2,126,087,000 from Shs
10,798,847 000 as at 31 December 2020 to Shs 8 872,760,000 as at 31 Decarmber 2021. Consiquently, the
NPL ratio reduced from 26% as at 31 December 2020 to 22% as at 31 Decermber 2021, The above recoveries
are projected to resull in unwinding of statlulory credil risk réserves and as a result Ihis will reduci the stabuiony
credit risk resesve resulting in a transler 1o retained eamings and will eventually improve the core tier 1 capital

Actions to improve fier 2 capital

The Group received tier 2 capital injection from the Group's significant shareholder, of Shs 1 billion on 1
February 2021. The funding has improved the total capital to total risk weighted assets ratio.

The Bank is currently in discussions with one of its lenders to convert part of the borrowing intc subordinated
debt (Tier | Capital). Only one key condition precedent remains Opens as of this the date of this report. This
cenversion is expected to improve the total capital ratio of the Group.

Liguidity ratio

The Banks liquidity ratio closed at 22.87% as at end of the year 2021 an improvement from last year's
pasition of 20.80%. This trend is expected to continwe in 2022 and with reduced debl obligations in 2022,
thare will be substantial upside on the liquidity position. In addition, the Group i currently hucding
investments in treasury bills and bonds amounting to Shs 6.550,168,000. Thesa investments are acivaly
traded in the Nairobi Securities Exchange and can ba bquidated on shor nofice to cover Tor liquidity neads.
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2

{a)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of preparation{continued)

Going concern {continued}

Compfiance with requiatory capital and other ratios

The Board and management expect the following actions to improve the Group's regulatory
compliance position:

» as covered above, the tier 2 capital already received from the Group's significant shareholder and
the conversion of a loan balance to tier 2 capital will improve tier 2 and total capital

» also as covered above, NPL recovery will reduce the statutory credit risk reserve resulling in a
transfer to retained earnings to improve the core tier 1 and total capital,

» sale of Rehani House building by December 2022 will ensure compliance with investment in
buildings o core capital and weuld also resuit to a one-off gain; and

« the Group in conjunction with the significant shareholder has appointed a transaction advisor to
scout for potential investors to provide both tier 1 and tier 2 capital.

The Group has engaged the regulator {CBK) on the regulatory breaches and the actions management
is taking to reguiarise the position. The Bank has shared a time bound action plan on how and when
each breach will be cured. As the Bank continues to achieve progress in resolving nen-performing
loans (NPLs} and achieving revenue growth, we are confident that the business will turn around.

The Group significant sharehoider has confirmed to the Directors that they will continue providing
business support to the Group and the Bank for a period of at least 12 months from the date of
approval of these financial statements.

Based on the above the directors believe that the going concern assumption is appropriate in the
preparation of the financial statements. The Directors expect that the business will continue to
generate enough funds internally to finance its operations and any external funding will be invested
in further growth of the business.

Changes in accounting pelicy and disclosures
i) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following standards and interpretations apply for the first time to financial reporting periods
commencing on or after 1 January 2021:

IFRS 16 'Leases’ COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions Amendment

As a result of the COVID-18 pandemic, rent concessions have been granted to lessees. Such
concessions might take a variety of forms, including payment holidays and deferral of lease payments.
In May 2020, the [ASB made an amendment to {FRS 18 Leases which provides lessees with an option
to treat qualifying rent concessions in the same way as they would if they were not lease modifications.
In many cases, this will result in accounting for the concessions as variable lease payments in the
period in which they are granted.
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{a}

Significant accounting policies {continued}

Basis of preparation {continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclesures {continued}

{i) New and amended standards adopted by the Group (continued}

IFRS 16, 'Leases’ COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions Amendment (continued)

Entities applying the practical expedients must disclose this fact, whether the expedient has been applied
to all qualifying rent concessions or, if not, information about the nature of the contracts to which it has been
applied, as well as the amount recognised in profit or loss arising from the rent concessions.

The relief was originally limited to reduction in lease payments that were due on or before 30 June 2021
However, the IASB subsequently extended this date to 30 June 2022,

If a lessee already applied the original practical expedient, it is required to continue to apply it consistently,
to all lease contracts with similar characteristics and in similar circumstances, using the subsequent
amendment. if a lessee did not apply the original practical expedient to eligible lease concessions, i is
prohibited from applying the expedient In the 2021 amendment. However, if a lessee has not yet eslablished
an accounting policy on applying (or not} the practical expedient to eligible lease concessions, it can still
decide to do so.

This amendment did not have a material impact on the Group's financial statements
Interest Rate Renchmark Reform Ameandments I0 IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

In August 2020, the IASB made amendments to IFRS 8, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 1o address
the issues that arise during the reform of an interest rate henchmark rate, including the replacement of one
benchmark with an alternative one.

The Phase 2 amendments provide the following reliefs

« When changing the basis for determining confractual cash flows for financial assets and liabilities
{including lease liabilities), the reliefs have the effect that the changes, that are necessary as a direct
consequence of IBOR reform and which are considered economicaily equivalent, will not result in an
immediate gain or loss in the income statement.

» The hedge accounting reliefs will allow most IAS 39 or IFRS 8 hedge relationships tha! are directly
affected by IBOR reform to continue. However, additional ineffectiveness might need to be recorded.

Effect of ibor reform on the Group’s financial statements

Following the financial crisis, the reform and replacement of benchmark interest rates such as USD LIBOR
and other inter-bank offered rates (IBCRs'y has become a priority for global regulators. There is currently
uncertainty around the timing and precise nature of these changes. The Group’s risk exposure that is directly
affected by the interest rate benchmark reform is only in reference to the USD LIBOR.

It is currently expected that SOFR (Secured Overnight Financing Rate} will replace USD LIBOR. There
remain key differences between USD LIBOR and SCFR. USD LIBOR is a ‘term rate’, which means that it is
published for a borrowing period (such as three months or six months} and is 'forward locking’, because itis
published at the beginning of the borrowing pericd. SOFR is currently a ‘backward-looking’ rate, based on
overnight rates from actual transacticns, and it is published at the end of the overnight borrowing period.

Furthermore, LIBOR includes a credit spread over the risk-free rate, which SOFR currently does not.
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{a)

Significant accounting policies {continued)

Basis of preparation {continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures {continued}
i) New and amended sfandards adopted by the Group (continued)

Effect of Ibor reform on the Group's financial statements {continued)

To tfransition existing contracts and agreements that reference USD LIBOR to SOFR, adjustments for term
differences and credit differences might need to be applied to SOFR, to enable the two benchmark rates to
be economicaily equivalent on transition.

The following table contains details of all of the financial instruments that the Group holds at 31 December

2021 which reference 6 month USD LIBOR and have not yet transitioned to SOFR or an alternative
interest rate benchmark as the settings will only be discontinued on 30 June 2023:

Measured at amortised cost Carrying value/Nominal Libor setting
amount at 31 December
2021
Shs'000
Borrowings
Shelter Afrique & months USD Libor plus a margin
615,376  of 6.35%.
Arab Bank for Economic Development 6 months USD Libor plus a margin
in Africa (BADEA) 200546  of 5%

Further details on the above borrowings can be found under Note 27
ii)Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective

As at 31 December 2021, the following standards and interpretations had been issued but were not
mandatory for annual reporting periods ending on 31 December 2021,

Praperty, Plant and Equipment. Proceeds before intended use -Amendments to 1AS 16

The amendment to AS 16 Property, Plani and Equipment (PP&E) prohibits an entity from deducting from
the cost of an item of PP&E any proceeds received from selling items produced while the entity is preparing
the asset for its intended use. 1t aiso clarifies that an entity is ‘testing whether the assetis functioning properly’
when it assesses the technical and physical performance of the asset. The financial performance of the
asset is not relevant to this assessment. Entities must disclose separately the amounts of proceeds and
costs relating to items produced that are not an output of the entity's ordinary activities.

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfitling & Contract Amendments to IAS 37
The amendment to IAS 37 clarifies that the direct costs of fulfiling a contract include both the incremental
costs of fulfilling the contract and an allocation of other costs directly related to fulfilling contracts. Before

recognising a separate provision for an onerous contract, the entity recognises any impairment loss that has
accurred on assets used in fulfilling the contract.
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(a)

Significant accounting policies {continued)

Basis of preparation {continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures {continued)

i) Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective (continued)
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 (continued}

The following improvements were finalised in May 2020:

IFRS 9 Finangial Instruments — clarifies which fees should be included in the 10% test for derecognition of
financial liabilitias,

IFRS 18 Leases — amendment to remove the illustration of payments from the lessor retating to leasehoid
improvements, to remove any confusion about the treatment of lease incentives.

Classification of Liabifities as Current or Non-current - Amendments to JAS 1

The narrow-scope amendments to 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements clarify that liabilities are
classified as either current or noncurrent, depending on the rights that exist at the end of the reporting
period. Classification is unaffected by the expectations of the entity or events after the reporting date (e.g.
the receipt of a2 waver or a breach of covenant). The amendments deferred from 1 January 2022 to 1 January
2023 also clarify what IAS 1 means when it refers to the 'settlement’ of a liability.

The amendments could affect the classification of liabilities, particularly for entities that previously
considered management's intentions to determine classification and for some liabilities that can be
converted into equity. They must be applied retrospectively in accordance with the normal requirements in
IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies — Amendments fo IAS T and IFRS Practice Statement 2

The |ASE amended IAS 1 to require entities to disclose their material rather than their significant accounting
policies. The amendments effective 1 January 2023 define what is ‘material accounting policy information’
and explain how to identify when accounting policy information is material. They further clarify that
immaterial accounting policy information dees not need to be disclosed. If it is disclosed, it should not
obscure material accounting information,

Te support this amendment, the [ASB also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiaiity
Judgements to provide guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.

Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendmenis {0 IAS 8

The amendment to tAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors effective 1
January 2023 clarifies how companies should distinguish changes in accounting policies from ¢changes in
accounting estimates. The distinction is important, because changes in accounting estimates are applied
prospectively to future transactions and other future events, but changes in accounting policies are generally
applied retrospectively to past transactions and other past events as well as the current period.
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(a)

(b}

Significant accounting policies {continued)

Basis of preparation {continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

ii}Standards, amendments and interprefations issued but not yet effective (confinued)

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to IAS 12

The amendments to IAS 12 income Taxes require companies to recognise deferred tax on transactions
that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal amounts of taxable and deductible temporary differences. They
will fypically apply to transactions such as leases of lessees and decommissioning cbiigations and will
require the recognition of additional deferred tax assets and liabilities.

The amendment should be applied to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest
comparative peried presented. In addition, entities should recognise deferred tax assels (to the extent that
it is probable that they can be ulilised) and deferred tax liabilities at the beginning of the earliest comparative
period for all deductible and taxable tempoerary differences associaled with:
« right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, and
» decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, and the corresponding amounts recognised as part
of the cost of the related assets.

The cumulative effect of recognising these adjustmentis is recognised in refained earnings, or another
compeonent of equity, as appropriate.

IAS 12 did not previously address how to account for the tax effects of on-balance sheet leases and simiiar
transactions and various approaches were considered acceptable. Some entities may have already
accounted for such transactions consistent with the new requirements. These entities will not be affected
by the amendments.

Foreign currency translation
{i} Functional and presentation cumency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates ("Functional Currency”). The financial statements are presented in
Kenya Shillings in thousands {Shs '000} which is the Group's functional currency.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the Functional Currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuations where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencles are recognised in the profit or loss, except
for differences arising on franslation of non-menetary financial assets carried at fair value through other
comprehensive inceme, which are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivaients are presented in

the profit or loss account within “finance income or costs’. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the statement of profit or loss for the year within ‘other operating income or expenses’,
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Notes {continued)

{c)

{d)

Revenue recognition
Net interest income

Interest income and expense are recognised in profit or loss on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method for all interest-bearing financial instruments, except for those classified af fair value through profit
or loss which are included under {rading income and:

+ purchased or originated credit impaired (POCI) for which the original credit adjusted effective interest rate
is applied to the amortised cost of the financial asset; and

» financial assets that are not POCI that have subsequently become impaired for which interest revenue is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to their amortised cost {i.e. net of expected credit losses)
in subsequent reporting penods.

Effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial assets or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or lability.

Direct incremental transaction costs incurred and origination fees received, including loan commitment fees,
as a result of bringing margin-yielding assets or labilities into the statement of financial position are
capitalised fo the carrying amount of financial instruments that are not at fair value through profit or loss,
and amortised as interest income or expense over the life of the asset or liability as part of the effective
interest rate.

Non — interest revenue
i. Net fee and commission revenue

Fee and commission revenue, including transaction fees, account servicing fees, custodial fees, sales
commissions and placement fees are recognised as the related services are performed. Loan commitment
fees for loans that are not expected to be drawn down are recognised on a siraight-line basis over the
commitment period. Fee and commission expense included in net fee and commission revenue are mainly
transaction and service fees relating to financial instruments, which are expensed as the services are
received. Expenditure is recognised as fee and commission expenses where the expenditure is linked to
the production of fee and commission revenue.

ii. Trading revenue

Trading revenue comprises ali gains and losses from changes in the fair value of trading assets and
liabilities, including foreign exchange gains and losses from monetary assets and liabilities.

iii. Other revenuse

Other revenue includes rental income, gains and losses from disposal of investment properties and property
and equipment and other revenue reatised as commissions.

Property and equipment

() Recognition and measurement

Items of property and equipment are initially recognised at cost. Cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost includes any other costs directly attributable to bringing
the asset to a working condition for its intended use and the present value of the estimated costs of

dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. After initial recognition,
property and equipment is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation.
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{d}

(e}

Significant accounting policies {continued)
Property and equipment (continued}
{)Recognition and measuremeint {continued)

Buildings held at fair value are subsequently shown at a revalued amount, being the fair value at the date
of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impalrment losses. Increases in the
carrying amount arising on revaluation are credited to other comprehensive income. Decreases that offset
previous increases of the same asset are charged against the revaluation surplus; all other decreases are
charged to profit or ioss.

The cost of replacing a component of an item of property and equipment is recognised in the carrying
amourt of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the
Bank and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced item is derecognised. The
cost of day to day servicing of property and equipment is recognised in profit and loss.

(i} Depreciation

Freehold land is not depreciated

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to allocate the cost or revalued amount to their residual
values over their estimated usefut lives as follows:

Computers 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Office equipment, fixtures and fittings 5% - 20%

Buildings on leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of 50 years and the remaining period of the
lease. Buildings on freehold land are depreciated over fifty years. The assets’ residual values, usefut lives
and methods of depreciation are reassessed at each financial year-end and adjusted prospectively, as a
change in an estimate, if appropriate.

(iii)Disposal of property and equipment

Gains and losses on disposal of property and equipment are determined by reference to the carrying amount
and are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Intangible assets

The Group's infangible assets include the value of computer software. Costs associated with maintaining
software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs that are directly
aitributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software products controlied by the Group
are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

It is technically feasible to complete the software so that it will be available for use;

Management intends to complete the software and use or sell it;

There is an ability to use or sell the software,

It can be demonstrated how the software will generate probable future economic benefits;

Adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
software are available; and

+ The expenditure attributable to the software during its development can be reliably measured.

= & 5 B @»

29



HF Group Plc
Financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Notes {continued)

2

{e}

{f

Signiticant accounting policies (continued)
Intangible assets {continued)

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software include emptoyee costs and an
appropriate portion of relevant overheads. Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible assets
and amortised from the point at which the asset is ready for use.

Foilowing initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumutated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses.

The intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the estimated usetul life, currently estimated at five
(5) to (B} years, on a straight-line basis from the date the software is available for use. The amortisation
period and the amartieation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amoriisation period or
method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Leases
At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a coniracl is, or containg, a lease.

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative stand-alone price.
However, for leases of branches and office premises the Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components and accounts for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease component.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease fiability af the lease commencement date. The right-
of-use asset is inftially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred
and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove any improvements made to branches or office premises.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the end of the lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is pericdically reduced by impairment
losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses its incremental borrowing
rate as the discount rate.

The Group determines its incremental borrowing rate by analysing its borrowings from various external
sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and type of asset leased.
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

« variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, the Group has used the CBR rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;
amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and
the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise, iease
payments in an optional renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain o exercise an extension
option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Group is reascnably certain not fo
terminate early.
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Significant accounting policies {continued)
Leases {continued}
(f) Group acting as a lessee

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. it is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in
the Group's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the Group
changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if there is
a revised in-substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset ¢r is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets separately while lease liabilities are presented in ‘other liabilities’ in
the statement of financial position.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assels

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low-value
assets and short-term leases, including leases of IT equipment. The Group recognises the lease payments
associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

{ii} Group acting as a lessor

At inception or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone selling
prices.

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether the lease is a finance lease or
an operating lease.

To classify each lease, the Group makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidenta! to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case,
then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the Group
considers certain indicaters such as whether the lease is for the major part of the economic Iife of the
asset.

The Group applies the derecognition and impairment requirements in IFRS 9 to the net investment in the
iease. The Group further regulariy reviews estimated unguaranteed residuat values used in calcuiating the
gross investment in the lease.

Employee henefits

(i}fEmployee retirement benefits plan

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme based on a percentage of pensionable earnings whose
funds are heid in a separate trustee administered and guaranteed scheme managed by an approved

insurance company. The pension plan is funded by contributions from the employees and the Group. The
Group's contributions are charged to profit or loss in the year to which they relate.
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Significant accounting policies {continued)
Employee benefits {continued)
(i} Employee retirement benefits plan (continued)

The employees and the Group also contribute to the National Sccial Security Fund. Contributions are
determined by the local statute and the Group's contributions are charged to profit or loss in the period to
which they relate.

fiijAccrued leave
Accrual for annual leave is made as employees eam it and reduced when taken.
{iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the Group is demonstrably committed, without
realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either terminate employment before the normal
retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made tc encourage voluniary
redundancy. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognised if the Group has made an offer
of voluntary redundancy, it is prebable that the offer will be accepted, and the number of acceptances can
be estimated reliably. If benefits are payabie mora than 12 months after the reporting date, then they are
discounted to their present value.

(iv)Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscountad hasis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term
cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the cobligation can be estimated reliably.

Income tax

The income tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred income fax. Income tax is recognised
in profit or ioss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

{i)Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date. The directors periodically evaluate positions taken in tax refurns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

{i)  Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates {and iaws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised
or the deferred income tax liability is seftled.
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Significant accounting policies {continued}
Income tax (continued)
(i} Deferred income fax {continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only io the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents include cash in hand, bank deposits held at call, unrestricted baiances held with
the central bank and highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from the
date of acquisition that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and are used by the
Group in the management of its short-term commitments. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at
amonrtised cost in the statement of financial position.

Financial instruments
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-
date, the date which the Group and Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

At initial recognition, the Group and Company measures a financial asset or financia! liability at its fair value
plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through the profit or loss,
transaction costs that are incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset
or financial liability, such fees and commissions. Transaction costs of financial assets and financial liabilities
are carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. Immediately after the initial
recognition, an expected credit loss allowance (ECL) is recognised for the financial assets measured at
amortised cost and investments in debt instruments measured at FVQCI, which results in an accounting loss
being recognised in profit or loss when an asset is newly originated.

When the fair value of financial assets and liabilities differs from the transaction price on initial recognition, the
entity recognises the difference as follows:

{a) When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability {i.e.
Level 1 input) or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, the difference
is recognised as a gain or 10ss.

{b} In all other cases, the difference is deferred, and the timing of recognition of deferred day one profit or loss
is determined individuaily. It is either amortised over the life of the instrument, deferred until the instrument’s
fair value can be determined using market observable inputs, or realised through settlement.

Financial assets

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement

The Group and Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories
- Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)

- Fair value through gther comprehensive income (FVOCI)
- Amortised cost
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Significant accounting policies {continued}

Financial instruments {continued)

Financial assets (continued}

() Classification and subsequent measurement {continued)
Debt instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a financial lability from the issuer's
perspective, such as loans, government and corporate bonds and trade receivabies purchased from clients in
factoring arrangements without recourse. Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depend on;

{i) the Group and Company’s business model for managing the asset; and

{ii) the cash flow characteristics of the asset

Based on these factors, the Group and Company classifies its debt instruments inte one of the following three
measurement categories:

- Amortised cost; assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI}, and that are not designated at FVPL, are measured at
amortised cost. The carrying amount of these assets are adjusted by any expected credit foss allowance,
Interest income from financial assets is included in “interest and similar income” using the effective interest
rate method.

- Fair vaiue through other comprehensive income {FVOCI). Financial assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for sclling the assots, where the assots’ cash flowe represent solsly payments of
principal and interest, and that are not designated at FVPL, are measured through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recegnition of
impairment gains of losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses on instrument’s amortised
cost which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or
ioss previously recognised in OC! is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in "Net investment
income” using the effective interest rate method.

- Fair value through the profit or loss. Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVQCI are
measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt instruments that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or
foss and presented within “Net trading income” in the period in which it arises, unless i arises from debt
instruments that were designated at fair value or which are not held for trading, in which case they are
presented separately in “Net investment income”. Interest income from these financial assets is included in
“interest income” using the effective interest rate method

Business model: The business model reflects how the Group and Company manages the assets in order to
generate cash flows. That is, whether the Group and Company's objective is solely to collect the contractual
cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from sale of
assets. If neither of these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for frading purposes), then the financial
assels are classified as part of "other” business model and measured at FVPL. Factors considered by the
Group and Company in determining the business modet for a group of assets inciude past experience on how
cash flows for these assets were collected, how the asset's performance is evaluated and reported by key
management personnel, how risks are assessed and managed and how managers are compensated. For
example, the liquidity portfelic of assets is held by the Group and Company as part of liquidity management
and is generally classified with the hold to collect and sell business model. Securities held for trading are held
principally for the purpose of selling in the near term or are part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actua! pattern of short-term profit-taking. These
securities are classified in the “other” business model and measured at FVPL.
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Significant accounting pelicies (continued)

Financial instruments {continued)

Financial assets {continued}

(#} Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Debt instruments {continued)

SPPIL Where the business model is {o hold assets to collect contraciual cash flows or to collect contractual
cash flows and sell, the Group and Company assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash flows
represents solely payments of principal and interest (the “SPPI test”). In making this assessment, the Group
and Company considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement
i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk and a profit margin that is
consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or
volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.,

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their
cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

The Group and Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes. The reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting period following the
change. The changes are expected o be very infrequent and none occurred during the year.

Equity instruments

Equity instrurments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from the issuer's perspective; that is,
instruments that do not corntain a contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the
issuer's net assets. Examples of equity instruments include basic ordinary shares.

The Group and Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss,
except where the entity’s management has elected, at initial recognition, o irrevocably designate an equily
investment at fair value through cther comprehensive income. The Group and Company's policy is to
designate eguity investments as FVQOCI when those investments are held for purposes other than to generate
investment returns. When this election is used, fair value gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal. Impairment losses (and reversals of
impairment losses) are not reported separately from other changes in fair values. Dividends, when
representing a return on such investments, continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when
the Group and Company's right to receive payment is established.

(Gains and losses on equity investments at FVPL are included in the “Net trading income” line in the statement
of profit or loss

(#)  Impairment of financial assets

Expected credit losses (ECL} are recognised on debt financial assets classified as at either amortised cost or
fair value through QClI, financial guarantee contracts that are not designated at fair value through profit or loss
as well as loan commitments that are neither measured at fair value through profit or loss nor are used to
provide a loan at a befow market interest rate.

The measurement basis of the ECL of a financial asset includes assessing whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk {SICR} at the reporting date, which includes forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions. The measurement basis of the ECL is set out below. ECL is measured
as the unbiased and prebability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible
outcomes, the time value of money and forward-locking information.
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Significant accounting policies {continued)
Financial instruments {continued}

Financial assets (continued)

(i} Impairment of financial assefs {continued)
Stages

Stage 1

A 12-month ECL is caloutated for financial assets which are neither credit impaired on origination nor for
which there has been a SICR.

Stage 2

A lifetime ECL allowance is calculated for financial assets that are assessed to have displayed an SICR since
origination and are not considered low credit risk.

Stage 3 (Credit impaired assets)

A lifetime ECL is calculated for financial assets that are assessed to be credit impaired. The following criteria
are used in determining whether the financial asset is impaired:

« Defauit (as defined below)

« Significant financial difficulty of borrower and/or modification
« Probability of bankruptey or financial recrganiaation

» Disappearance of an active market due to financial difficutties

The key components of the impairment methodology are described as follows:
Significant increase in credit risk

At each reporting date, the Group and Company assesses whether the credit risk of ifs exposures has
increased significantly since initial recognition by considering the change in the risk of default cceurring over
the expected life of the financial asset.

Low credit risk

Exposures are generally considered to have a low credit risk where there is a fow risk of default, the exposure
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations and adverse changes in economic and
business conditions may not necessarily reduce the exposure’s ability to fuffil its contractual obligations.

Default

The Group and Company's definition of default has been aligned to its internal credit risk management
definitions and approaches. A financial asset is considered to be in default when there is objective evidence
of impairment. The following criteria are used in determining whether there is objective evidence of impairment
for financial assets or groups of financial assets:

+ Significant financial difficulty of borrower and/or modification {i.e. known cash flow difficulties experienced
by the borrower)}

« A breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest and/or principal payments

« Disappearance of active market due te financial difficulties

- |t becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation

36



HF Group Ple
Financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Notes {continued)

2

{i)

Significant accounting policies {continued)

Financial instruments {continued}

Financial assets {continued)

(i} Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Defauit (continued)

* Where the Group and Company, for economic or legal reasons retfating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
grants the borrower a concession that the Group and Company would not otherwise consider

» Exposures which are overdue for more than 90 days are also considered to be in default

Forward-looking information

Forward-looking information is incorporated into the Group and Company's impairment methodology
calculations and in the Group and Company's assessment of SICR. The Group and Company includes all
forward-looking information which is reasonable and available without undue cost or effort. The information
will typically include expected macroeconomic conditions and factors that are expected to impact portfolios or
individual counterparty exposures.

Wirite-off

Financial assets are written: off when there is no reasonable expeciation of recovery. Financial assets which
are written off may still be subject to enforcement activities.

ECLs are recognised within the statement of financiai position as follows

Financial assets measured at amortised cost (including loan commitments)

Recognised as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the asset (group of assets}. Where the
impairment allowance exceeds the gross carrying amount of the asset (group of assets), the excess is
recognised as a provision within other fiabilities.

Off-balance sheet exposures (excluding loan commitments)

Recognised as a provisicn within other liabilities.

Financial assets measured at fair value through OCI

Recognised in the fair value reserve within equity. The carrying amount of the financial asset is recognised in
the statement of financial position at fair value.

(i} Modification of Joans

The Group and Company sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the confractual cash flows of Ipans
to customers. Vithen this happens, the Group and Compary assesses whether the new terms are substantially
different to the original terms. The Group and Company does this by considering, among others, the following
factors:

« f the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the modification merely reduces the contractual cash flows
to amounts the borrower is expected to be able to pay.

+ Whether any substantial new terms are introduced, such as a profit share/fequity based return that
substantially affects the risk profile of the loan.
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Significant accounting policies {continued)

Financial instruments {continued)

Financial assets {continued}

(i) Modification of loans {continued)

Significant extension of the loan term when the borrower is not in financial difficulty.
Significant change is interest rate

Change in the currency of the loan

Insertion of collateral, other security or credit enhancement that significantly affect the credit risk
associated with the loan.

if the terms are substantially different, the Group and Company derecognises the original financial asset and
recogrises a "new" asset at fair value and recalculates a new effective interest rate for the asset. The date of
renegotiation is consequently considered to be the date of initial recognition for impairment calculation
purposes, including for determining whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred.

However, the Group and Company also assesses whether the new financial asset recognised is deemed to
be credit-impaired at initial recognition, espegially in circumstances where the renegotiation was driven by the
debtor being unable to make the originally agreed payments. Differences in the carrying amount are also
recognised in profit or loss as a gain or foss on deregognitior.

if the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or modification does not result in derecognition,
and the Group and Company recalculates the gross carrying amount based on the revised cash flows of the
financial asset and recognises a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. The new gross carrying amount is
recalcuiated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original effeclive inleiesl rale uf Gedit-adjusted
effective inferest rate for POCI financial assets.

{iv) Derecognition other than on a modification

Financial assets. or a portion thereof, are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows
from the assets have expired, or when they have been transferred and either (i} the Group and Company
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, or {ii) the Group and Company neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the Group and Company has not retained
control.

The Group and Company enters into transactions where it retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows
from assets but assumes a contractual obfigation to pay those cash fiows to other entities and transfers
substantially all of the risks and rewards. These transactions are accounted for as “pass through’ fransfers
that result in derecognition if the Bank:

{i Has no obligaticn to make payments unless it collects equivalent amounts from the assets
{i)) Is prohibited from selling or pledging the assets; and
{iiy Has an obligation to remit any cash it collects from assets without material delays

Collateral (shares and bonds) fumished by the Group and Company under standard repurchase agreements
and securities lending and borrowings transactions are net derecognised because the Group and Company
retaing substantially all the risks and rewards on the basis of predetermined repurchase price, and the criteria
for derecognition are therefore not met. This alsc applies to certain securitisation transactions in which the
Group and Company retains a subordinated residual interest.
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Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities

(i) Classification and subseguent measurement

in both the current period and prior period, financial liabilities are classified as subsequently measured at
amortised cost, except for:

« Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss such as derivatives, financial liabilities held for trading
{e.g., short positions in the trading booking) and other financial liabilities designated as such at initial
recognrition. Gains or losses on financial liabilittes designated at fair vaiue through profit or loss are
presented partially in other comprehensive income {the amount of change in the fair values of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability) and partially profit or loss {the remaining
amount of change in the fair value of the liability);

» Financial liabllities arising from the transfer of financial assets which did not qualify for derecognition,
whereby a financial liability is recognised for the consideration received for the transfer. In subsequent
periods, the Group and Company recognises any expense incurred on the finangial liability; and

= Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments
(iiy Derscognition

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished {i.e. when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires;.

The exchange between the Group and Company and its original lenders of debt instruments with substantially
different terms, as weil as substantial modification of the terms of the existing financial iabilities, are accounted
for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The
terms are substantially different if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the new terms,
including any fees paid net of any {ees received and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is at
teast 10% different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial
liability. In addition, other gualitative factors, such as the currency that the instrument is denominated in,
changes in the lype of interest rate, new conversion features attached to the instrument and change in
covenants are also taken intc consideration. If the exchange of debt instruments or modification of terms is
accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss on
the extinguishment. If the exchange of modification is not accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or
fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the liability and are amortised over the remaining term of the
modified liability.

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position,
when there is a legaily enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention fo settie on
a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the Group and Company {issuer} to make specified

payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.
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Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recogrised at fair value, which is generally equal to the premium
received, and then amortised over the life of the financial guarantee. Financtal guarantee contracts (that are
not designated at fair value through profit

or loss} are subsequently measured at the higher of the:

= ECL calculated for the financial guarantee; or

+ unamortised premium,

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are tested annually for impairment and additionaily whenever evenis or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable,

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. Fair velue less costs ascertaining the current market value of an asset and
deducting any costs related to the realisation of the asset. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows from continuing use (CGUs).
Impairment test can also be performed on a single asset when the fair value less costs of development or
the value in use can be determined reliably. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment 10ss is reversed through profit or
loss only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, i nc impairment loss had been recognised.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are declared.
Deposits from customers

Deposits from customers are recegnised and accounted for on receipt basis as liabilities. Interest expense
for interest earning deposits is accrued on the deposits on a daily basis.

Comparatives
Except otherwise required, all amounts are reported or disclosed with comparative information. Where

necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation in the current
year.
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Significant accounting policies {continued)
Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net reatisable value. Cost comprises expenditure incurred in
the normal course of business, including direct material costs, labour and direct overheads wherever
appropriate on a weighted average basis, incurred in acquiring inventories or to bring them to the existing
location and condition. Net realisable value is the price at which the inventories can be realised in the
normal course of business after allowing for the costs of the realisation and, where appropriate, the cost of
conversion from its existing state fo a realisable cendition. Allowance is made for obsolete, slow moving
and defective inventories.

Contingent liabilities

Significant litigations and claims against the Group and Company, letlers of credit, acceptances, guarantees
and performance bonds are accounted for and disclosed as contingent liabilities. Estimates of the outcome
and the financial effect of confingent liabilities is made by management based on the information available
up to the date the financial statements are approved for issue by the directors. Any expected loss is
recognised in profit or ioss.

Fiduciary activities

The Group and Company commonly engages in trust or other fiduciary activities that result in the holding
or placing of assets on behalf of individuals, trusts, post-employment benefit plans and other institutions.
These assets and the income arising directly thereon are excluded from these annual financial statements
as they are not assets of the Group and Company. However, fee income earned and fee expenses
incurred by the Group and Company relating to the Group and Company s responsibilities from fiduciary
activities are recognised in profit or loss.

Derivative financial assets and liabilities

The Group and Company enters into derivatives (currency forwards and swaps) for trading purposes. At
their inception, derivatives often invcive only a mutual exchange of promises with little or no transfer of
consideration. The Group and Company may take positions with the expectation of profiting from favourable
movement in prices, rates or indices. The Group and Company's exposure under derivative contracts is
closely monitored as part of the overali management of its market risk. Derivatives are recorded at fair value
and carried as assets when their fair value is positive and as liabilities when their fair value is negative.
Changes in the fair value of derivatives are included in net trading income.

The Group and Company uses the following derivative instruments

Currency forwards

Forward contracts are contractual agreements to buy or sell a specified financial instrument at a specific
price and date in the future. Forwards are customised contracts transacted in the over-the—counter market.

The Group and Company has credit exposure to the counterparties of forward contracts. Forward contracts
are seflled gross and result in market risk exposure.
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Significant accounting policies {continued}
Earnings per share

Earnings per share is calculated based on the profit or loss attributable to shareholders divided by the
weighted number of ordinary shares. Diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic earnings per
share. Diluted earnings per share are computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and
dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding during the period. During the year, there were no outstanding
shares with dilutive potential.

investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the Croup and Company, is classified az investment property. Investment property 2lso includes property
that is being constructed or developed for future use as investment property.

After initial recognition, investment property is accounted for in accordance with the cost model as set out
in 1AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — cost less accumulated depreciation and less accumulated
impairment losses.

Provislons, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group and Company has a present legal or constructive cbiigation as
a result of past events, it is probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows using a pre-tax discount rate that
refiects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liabiity.

The increase in provision due te passage of time is recognised as an expense.

Where there are a number of similar gbligations, the probability that an outflow will be required in
seftlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. Although the tikelihood of
outflow for any one item may be small, it may well be probable that some outflow of resources will be
needed to seftle the class of obligations as a whole.

A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Group and Company has approved a detailed formal
plan, and the restructuring either has commenced or has been announced publicly. Future operating costs
or losses are not provided for,

A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the Group
and Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the
contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating
the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Befere a provision is established,
the Group and Company recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the annual financial statements but are disclosed when, as a
result of past events, it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Group and Company, but this
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events which
are not wholly within the Group and Company's control.

Centingent liabiiities include certain guarantees, other than financial guarantees, and letters of credit.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the annuai financial statements but are disclosed in the notes
to the annual financial statements unless they are remote.
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{w) Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred including acquisition cost, measured at
acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interast in the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-confrolling interest in the acquiree at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition related costs are
expensed as incurred and included in operating expenses.

When the Greup acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any previous interest held over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. if the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess
of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of
the assets acquired and all of the liabilittes assumed and reviews the progcedures used {o measure the
amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair
value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in
profit or loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group's cash generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

In the Company's financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

{x} Consolidation
i} Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities ({including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the asse!s transferred,
the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest's propertionate share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying amount of the acquirer's

previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at fair value at the acquisition date; any gains
or losses arising from such re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies {continued}
Consolidation {continued)
Subsidiaries {continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance with [FRS 9 either in profit or loss or as & change to other
comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured, and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any nen-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acguisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recerded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recegnised and previcusly held interest measured is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect these returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is fransferred fo the Greup. They are
deconsalidated from the date that control ceases.

The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. The group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest's proporticnate share of the recognised
amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying amount of the acquirer’s
previcusly held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at fair value at the acquisition date, any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are recegnised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance with IFRS @ either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured, and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within eqguity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling inferest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive ingome.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are

efiminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform to the Group’s accounting policies.
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Significant accounting policies {continued)
Consolidation (continued)
Changes in ownership interests

Transactions with nen-controlling interests that de not result in loss of contrel are accounted for as
equity transactions - that is, as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of
net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains ¢r losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entily are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassifiad to profit or loss.

Operating segments

Operating segments are components that engage in business activities that may earn revenues or
incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed and for which discrete financial
information is available.

Operating segments are reporied in @ manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing the performance of the operating segments has been identified as the
Strategy and Investment Committee that makes strategic decisions.

All transactions between business segments are conducted on an arm’'s length basis, with intra-
segment revenue and costs being etiminated in head office. Income and expenses directly associated
with each segment are included in determining busingss segment performance.

Operating segments defined at HF Group Ple are organised in four main reporting segments. The
segmentation is based on the Group's management and internal reporting structure.

The fellowing summary describes the operations of each of the Group's reportable segment;

+ Retail banking: This segment is mainly responsible for sourcing residential mortgages for
individual owner occupiers, micro loans, personal loans and it forms the major proportion of
the Group's lgan book. The segment is also responsible for the sourcing of deposits from retail
cusiomers which are then used to finance the Group's loan products.

s Corporate banking: This segment is responsible for sourcing for deposits from corporate
organizations. It is also in charge of projects, providing lending to property developers for
construction. This includes construction of residential houses for sale, construction of office
blocks, schools, hospitals and other related infrastructure.

» Property Development: This function is undertaken by one of the Group’s subsidiaries, HF

Development and Investment Limited and its core business is the development of housing
projects and the sale of houses thereof.
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Significant accounting policies {continued)
Operating segments {continued)

e Bancassurance: The bancassurance function is based at the HF Insurance Agency Limited
and the business is procuring insurance business and earning commissions thereof.

Segment profit is used to measure performance as management believes that such information is the
most relevant in evaluating the resuits of each.

Joint arrangements

Under IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. The classification depends on the contractual rights and obligations of
each investor, rather than the legal structure of the joint arrangement.

Joint operations

The Group recognises its direct right to the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of joint
operations and its share of any jointly held or incurred assets, fabilities, revenues and expenses.
The Group does nol have joint operations arrangements.

Joint ventures

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method, after initially being recognised
at cost in the statement of financial position. The Group's joint venture arrangements have been
disciosed under Note 20.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will
seldom equal the actual results. The directors also need to exercise judgment in applying the Group and
Company's accounting policies.

Ali estimates and assumptions required in conformity with IFRS are best estimates undertaken in accordance
with the applicable standard. Estimates and judgements are evaluated on a ¢ontinuous basis and are based
on experience and other facters, including expectations with regard to future events.

This note provides an overview of the areas that invoive a higher degree of judgment or complexity, and
majof sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of resuiting in a material adjustment within
the next financia! year. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in
the related notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the
financial statements.

{a} Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance
The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortised cost and
FVOCI is an area that requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions about future

economic conditions and credit behaviour {¢.g. the iikelihood of customers defaulting and the resulting
losses).
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued}
Use of estimates and judgements {continued)
{a) Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance (continued)

The estimation of potential credit losses is inherently uncertain and depends upen many factors, including
general economic conditions, changes in individual customers’ circumstances, structural changes within
industries that alter competitive positions and other external factors such as legal and regulatory
requirements.

Impairment is measured for all accounts that are identified as non-performing. All relevant considerations
that have a bearing on the expected future cash flows are taken into account which include but not limited
to future business prospects for the customer, realizable value of securities, the Group and Company’s
position relative fo other claimants and the existence of any court injunctions placed by the borrower.
Subjective judgments are made in this process of cash flow determination both in value and timing and may
vary from one person to another and team to team. Judgments may also change with time as new information
becomes available.

The Group and Company reviews ifs loans and advances at each reporting date o assess whether an
allowance for impairment should be recognized in profit or loss. In particular, judgment by the directors is
required in the sstimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of
allowance required. Such estimates are based on the assumptions about a number of factors and actual
results may differ, resulting in future changes in the allowance.

Judgements
The following represent critical judgements adopted

= Ascertaining what constitutes significant increase in credit risk

*  Segmentation of portfolios,

= Criteria used in determination of which exposures should be individually assessed;
« Definiticn of default and/or credit impaired;

+  Write-off policy;

Estimates
The following approach was adopted to determine estimates

= Selecting and calibrating the PD, LGD and EAD models which support the cafculations, including
making reasonable and supporiable judgements about how models react to current and future
economic conditions

= Selecting model inputs including determining whether sufficient and appropriately weighted economic
forecasts are incorporated to calculate unbiased expected losses

= Determining balances to write off

The Group and Company has revised it's estimated expected credit losses, in response {o uncertainties,
elevated credit risks and weakening global market conditions due to the pandemic. The financial impact of
the downturn in the economy on the Group and Company’s financial instruments was reassessed with
changes made to the Probability of Default (PDj} rates and Loss Given Default (LGD}. Where applicable, the
probability weightings assigned to possible loss scenarios were aiso revised. In determining what was
considered to be appropriate levels for these critical inputs. Seme judgement was also applied, based on
credit experience with the Group and Company's borrowing clients. Under Note 4 we have set out
assumptions used in determining ECL and provides an indication of the sensitivity of the different weightings
and changes to PD being applied in different scenarios.
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The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments
credit risk
liquidity risk

market risk
capital management

LI I R d

The directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk
management framework.

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Group, to aet appropriate risk limits and contrels, and o monior risks and adherence fo limits Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed reqularly to reflect changes in market conditions and
the Group's activities.

{a) Creditrisk

Credit risk is the current or prospective risk to earnings and capital arising from an cbligor's failure to
meet the terms of any contract with the Group or if an obligor otherwise fails to perform as agreed.

The Group's policy is to pursue timely realisation of the collateral in an orderly manner.

The Group helds collateral against leans and advances to customers in the form of mortigage interests
over property. Estimates of {air value are based on the value of collateral assessed at the time of
borrowing, and generally, are not updated except when a loan is individually assessed as impaired.
Collateral is not held over placements with banks and investment in government securities as these
are considered 1o be low credit nsk.

Management of credit risk

The Board of directors has delegated responsibility for the management of credit risk to the Group's
management through the Group Chief Executive Officer. Management has delegated this
responsibility to head office and branch credit committees. The Group's credit committee, reporting to
the Group Chief Executive Officer, is responsible for oversight of the cradit risk, including:

« Formulating credit policies in consultation with business units, covering collateral requirements,
credit assessment, risk grading and reporting, documentary and legal procedures, and
compliance with regulatory and statutory requirements.

+ Establishing the authorisation structure for the approval and renewal of credit facilities.
Authorisation limits are allocated to head office and branch credit committees.

* Reviewing and assessing credit risk. The Group Credit Committee assesses all credit exposures
in excess of designated limits, prior to facilities being committed to customers hy the branch
concerned. Renewals and reviews of facilities are subject to the same review process.

Limiting concentrations of exposure to counterparties and industries for loans and advances.
Reviewing compliance with agreed exposure limits, including those for selected industries and
product types. Regular reports are provided to the Group's Credit department on the credit quality
of different portfolios and appropriate corrective action is taken.

Regular audits of branches and Group's credit processes are undertaken by internal audit.
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(a} Credit risk (continued)

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the statement of financial position
at 31 December is their carrying amount as iflustrated in the tabie below:

2021 2020
Note Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000
Credit exposures
On - balance sheet items
Balances and deposits due from financial institutions* 16 2202775 1,725,882
Investment securities 18 6,550,168 7,105617
Loans and advances to customers 22 34 692,625 36,796,864
Leoans and advances to banks 22 . 201,508
Other assets™ 23 531,039 477,283
43,876,807 46,307,265
Off-balance sheet items )
Guarantees
Letters of credit, acceptances and other credits 976,588 685,516
168,046 136,209
1,145,634 821,725
45 122,241 47 128,990

Management of credit risk {continued)

*Balances and deposits due from financial institutions exciudes cash at hand as disclosed under Note
16 as this does not pose a credit risk.

The credit risk on balances and deposits due from financial instiutions and investment securities is
limited as the counterparties are all recognised financial institutions with good reputation.

~Other assets are made up of settiement and clearing accounts, refundable deposits and other
receivable balances. Prepayments and foreclosed assets have bgen excluded from other assets
halances as they do not bear any credit risk. The balances are settled no more than 12 months after
the reporting date. All the balances are non-interest bearing and impairment of Shs 33,890,195 {2020:
Shs 24,825,000) has been recognised against them at 31 December 2021.

None of the other assets and balances due from related parties are past due or impaired. Management

has established a related entity risk management framework inciuding mandatory credit checks with
counter parties.
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(b} Credit risk {continued)

Management of credit risk (continued)

Exposure fo credit risk (loans and advances)

2021
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

12-month ECL  Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Total
Amortised cost Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000
Individually and collectively
impaired
Grade 3: Substandard - 355,981 355,981
Grade 4: Doubtful 8,318,779 8,316,775
Grade 5; Loss g
Gross amount 8,672,760 8,672,760
Provision for impairment losses - (2,943,618) {2,943,618)
Carrying amount 5,728,142 5,729,142
Grade 1: Normal 22,086,457 . 22,086,457
Grade 2: Watch - 7,290,048 7,280,049
Gross amount 22,086,457 7,290,048 29,376,506
Provision for impairment losses {13,152} {369.871) {413,023)
Carrying amount 22,073,305 6,890,178 28,963,483
Total Carrying amount 22,073,305 6,890,178 5,728,142 34,682,625
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{a) Credit risk (continued}
Management of credit risk {continued}

Exposure to credit risk (loans and advances)

2020
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Total
ECL

Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000
Amortised cost
Individually and collectively
impaired
Grade 3. Substandard - - 326,251 326,251
Grade 4: Doubtful - . 10,472,596 10,472,596
Grade 5: Loss : - - :
Gross amount - - 10,768,847 10,798,847
Provision for impairment losses - - (3,203,354) (3,203,354
Carrying amount - 7,585,483 7,595,483
Grade 1: Normal 23,272,585 - . 23,272,585
Grade 2: Waich . 6,558,282 - 6,558 292
Gross amount 23,272,585 6,558,292 - 29,830,877
Provision for impairment losses {78,051) (342,8486) - {427,897
Carrying amount 23,154,534 6,208 446 - 29,402,980
Total Carrying amount 23,194,534 6,208,448 7,695,493 36,898,473

Doubtful account includes ioans and advances whose days past due is over 180 days. Loss account
represents those accounts which are considered uncoilectible by the Bank.
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{a)} Credit risk (continued)
Management of credit risk (continued)

Grade 1 and grade 2 represent loans and advances that are not impaired. Grade 3, grade 4 and grade
5 refer to loans and advances that have been impaired in ling with the Group's credit policy and internat
model. These represent the loans and advances that the Group cannot collect according to contractual
terms of the loan agreements.

impaired loans
Impaired loans are oans which the Group determines that it is probable that it will be unable to cellect
all principal and interest due according to the confractual terms of the loan agreements.

Pasf due but not impaired loans

These are loans where contractual interest or principal payments are past due but the Bank believes
that impairment is not appropriate on the basis of the stage of coliection of amounts owed to the Bank.

Aflowances for impairment
The loss ailowance recognised in the period is impacted by a variety of factors as follows:

« Transfers between Stage 1 and Stage 2 or 3 due to financial instruments experiencing

«  significant increases {or decreases} of credit risk or becoming credit impaired in the period, and
the consequent "step up” or “step down” between 12-month and lifetime ECL;

«  Additional allowance for new financial instruments recognised during the period, as well as
releases for financial instruments de-recognised in the period;

«  Impact on the measurement of ECL due to changes in PDs, EADs and LGDs in the period, arising
from regular refreshing of inputs to models,
impacts on the measurement of ECL due to changes made to models and assumptions;

« Discount unwind within ECL due to the passage of time, as ECL is measured on a present value
basis; and

« Financial assets derecognised during the period and write-offs of allowances related to assets that
were written off during the period.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a loan balance when the credit department determines that the loans are
uncollectible. This determination is reached after considering information such as the occurrence of
significant changes in the borrower’s financial position such that the borrower can no longer pay the
obiigation or that proceeds from collaterai have failed to cover the entire facility outstanding. For smailer
balance standardised loans, write-off decisions are generally based on a product specific past due
default history.
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(a) Credit risk (continued)
Management of credit risk {continued}
Coflateral on loans and advances

The Greup routinely obtains collateral and security to mitigate credit risk. The Group ensures that any
collateral held is sufficiently liquid, legally effective, enforceable and regularly reassessed.

Before attaching value to collateral, the business holding approved collateral must ensure that they
are legally perfected deveid of any encumbrances. Security structures and legal covenants are
subject to regular review, to ensure that they remain fit for purpose and remain consistent with
accepted local market practice. The principal collateral types held by the Group for loans and
advances are Mortgages over residential properties and commercial properties.

Valuation of collateral taken is within agreed parameters. The valuation is performed on origination,
periodically in line with the Group policy and in the course of enforcement actions. Collateral for
impaired loans is reviewed reguiarly to ensure that it is still enforceable, and that the impairment
allowance remains appropriate given the current valuation.

The Group has considered all relevant factors, including local market conditions and practices,
before any collateral is realized. The collateral held by the Group against loans and advances is as
below,

Group
2021 2020
Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000
Property 87,077,067 71,985,390
Cash 983,125 30,112

88,080,192 72,015,502

The Group monitors concentration of credit risk by sector. An analysis of concentration of credit risk
at the reporting date is shown below:

Group

2021 2020
Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000

Concenlration by segment {Gross)
Mortgage 24,138,451 28,387,651
Projects 8,955,214 10,780,834
Commercial 3988518 2,949 952
Unsecured 936,309 447 981
IPF 30,764 53,280
Micro 10 16

38,049,266 40,629,724
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4

Financial risk management {continued)

{a) Credit risk (continued)

Management of credit risk {continued)

Impairment assessment

The Group calculates ECLs either on a collective or an individuat basis.
Asset classes where the Group calculates ECL on an individual basis include
All Stage 3 assets, regardless of the class of financial assets:

e The treasury, trading and interbank relationships {such as due from Banks, cash collateral on
securities borrowed and reverse repurchase agreements and debt instruments at amortised
costEVOCH

» Exposures that have been classified as POCI when the original loan was derecognised, and a
new loan was recognised as a result of a credit driven debt restructuring

Asset classes where the Group calculates ECL on a collective basis include:

s The smaller and more generic balances of the Group's loan portfolic
» Stage 1 and 2 retail morfgages, consumer iending and construction projects
» POCI exposures managed on a collective basis

The Graup groups these exposures inte smaller homogeneous portfolios, based on a combination of
internat and external characteristics of the loans.

Analysis of inputs to the ECL mode! under multiple economic scenarios:

The Group incorporates forward-tooking information into both its assessment of whether the credit risk
of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial recognition and its measurement of ECL.
On the basis of a variety of external aclual and forecast information, the Group formulates a ‘base
case' view of the future direction of relevant economic variables as well as a representative range of
other possible forecast scenarios.

This process involves developing two additional economic scenarios and considering the relative
probabilities of each outcome. External information includes economic data and forecasts published
by governmental bodies and monetary authorities, other organisations such as the International
Monetary Fund {IMF), World Bank and selected private-sector and academic forecasters.

The base case represents a most-likely cutcome and is aligned with information used by the Group
for other purposes such as strategic planning and budgeting. The other scenarios represent more
optimistic and more pessimistic outcomes. Periodically, the Group carries out stress testing of more
extreme shocks to calibrate its determination of these other representative scenarios.

The Group has identified and documented key drivers of credit risk and credit losses for each portfolio

of financial instruments and, using an analysis of historical data, has estimated relationships between
macro-econgmic variables, credit risk and credit [osses.
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4

Financial risk management {continued)
{a} Credit risk {continued)

Impairment assessment {continued)

The economic scenarios used as at 31 December 2021 included the following ranges of key indicators;

2021 - Significant macroecenomic factors (based on the Bank's segments)

1. Mortgage Base Upside
Macro-econgimic variable Weighting

Coefficients 66.00% 1.00%
Centrai Bank Rate 0.54142 6.90% 6.80%
Housing Price Index -0.63752 -0.03% 0.50%
Public Debt to GDP -0.33812 65.00% 66.39%
2. Projects

: Base Upside

Macro-economic variable Weighting

Coefficients 66.00% 1.00%
Repo 1.5027 4.80% 4.08%
81- Day T-bills -30389 7.34% 7.65%
364-Day T-bills -4.1374 9.13% 9.62%
Central Bank Rate -8.1648 5.90% 6.90%
Housing Price Index -2.8164 -0.03% 0.32%
Puhlic Debt to GDP -0.7828 65.00% 66.39%
3. Commercial Base Upside

iahti

Macro-economic variable Weighting

Coefficients 66.00% 1.00%
Ceniral Bank Rate 3.1688 6.90% 6.90%
Housing Price Index -2.1427 -0.03% 0.50%
Public Debt to GDP -1.0824 65.00% 66.38%
4. Micro Weighting
Macro-economic variable Coefficients 66.00% 1.00%
Central Bank Rate 9.8557 6.90% 6.90%
Housing Price Index -4.1814 -0.03% 0.50%

55

Downside

33.00%
6.90%

-0.56%
63.61%

Downside

33.00%
5.52%
7.02%

9%
7%
0%
64%

Downside

33.00%
5.90%

-0.56%
63.61%

33.00%
5.90%
-0.56%
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4  Financial risk management {continued)

(a} Creditrisk {continued}

Analysis of inputs fo the ECL model under multiple economic scenarios {continued)

5. Unsecured
Macro-economic variable

Saving
Public Debt o GDP

6.1PF
Macro-economic variable

Housing Price Index
Public Cebt to GDP

Coefficients
14676
1.511

Coefficients
(.19648
0.15781

2020 - Significant macroecenomic facters (based on the Bank's segments)

Micro

Macro-economic variable
91 Day T-Bills

384 Day T-Bills

Housing Price Index
Constant

Unsecured

Macre-economic variable
REFPO

Inflation

Saving

Constant

Co-efficient
-43.0878
23.6285
-5 3858
1.4656

Co-efficient

-2.16755

-4.64038

4.50855

0.4592

Base Upside
Weighting
£6.00% 1.00%
4.84% 4.49%
65.00% 83.61%
Base Upside
Weighting
86.00% 1.00%
-0.03% -0.56%
65.00% 63.61%
Base Upside
Weighting
74.50% 1.00%
5.59% 7.02%
8.18% 7.35%
-0.14% 0.22%
Base Upside
Weighting
72 50% 9.58%
5.05% 8.37%
3.00% 3.73%
3.94% 356%

Downside

33.00%
5.18%
86.39%

Downside

33.00%
0.50%
66.39%

Downside

24 .50%
6.16%
8.02%
-0.49%

Downside

17.92%
3.74%
2.27%

421%

IPF sector was not correlated with any of the range of macroeconomic factors. This is due to the fact that the sector is
made up of short-term lcans mostly lasting for a year or less. For this reason, the historical POs were used,

The correlation of the above factors with the Group's non-performing leans {NPL %) were also used to
determine whether these factors should be lagged.
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4

Financial risk management {continued)
{a} Credit risk {continued)

The Group's nen-perorming loans {NPL%) was a reasonable approximation to the Group's default
risk. The correlation between the Group’s non-performing loans {NPL%) with the above
macroeconomic factors was then inferred to the Group's predicated Probabilities of Default.

Further, in determining the economic scenarios to be applied, each of the economic variable was
adjusted either upside or downside using the histerical standard deviation.

In determining the likelihood of each of the three macroeconomic scenarfos, a weighting of 90% (base
case), 5% (upside case} and 5% {downside case) was applied. Predicted relationships between the
key indicators and default and loss rates on various portfolios of financial assets were developed
based on analysing historical data over the past 3 to 5 years.

Measurement of ECL
The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term structure of the following variables:

= Probability of default (PD};
« Loss given default (LGD); and
+ Exposure at default (EAD}.

These parameters are generally derived from internally developed statistical models and cther
historical data. They are adjusted to reflect forward-looking information as described above.

PDs are estimates at a certain date, which are calculated based on statistical models, and assessed
using rating tools tailored to the various categories of counterparties and exposures. These statistical
models are based on internally compiled data comprising both quantitative and qualitative factors.
Where it is available, market data may also be used to derive the PD for loans and advances to banks
and investment securities,

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. The Group estimates LGD parameters
based mainly on the counterparties’ ¢cellateral and also on the history of recovery rates of claims
against defaulted counterparties. The LGD models consider the structure, collateral, seniority of the
¢laim, counterparty industry and recovery costs of any collateral that is integral to the financial asset.
They are catculated on a discounted cash fiow basis using the effective interest rate as the discounting
factor.

For loans portfolios, LGD values are assessed at least every three months by account managers
and reviewed and approved by the Group’s credit risk department. The credit risk assessment is
based on a standardised LGD assessment framework that results in a certain LGD rate. These LGD
rates take into account the expected EAD in comparison to the amount expected to be recovered or
realised from any collateral held.

The Group segments its retail iending products into portfolios, hased on key characteristics that are
relevant to the estimation of future cash flows. The applied data is based on historically collected
loss data and involves a wider set of transaction characteristics {e.qg., product type, wider range of
collateral types) as well as borrower characteristics.

57



HF Group Ple
Financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Notes {continued)

4

Financial risk management {continued)
{b} Credit risk {continued}
Measurement of ECL {continued)

Further recent data and forward-looking economic scenarios are used in order to determine the IFRS
9 LGD rate for each group of financial instruments. When assessing forward-looking information, the
expectation is based on multiple scenarios. Examples of key inputs involve changes in, collateral
values inciuding property prices for mortgages, commodity prices, payment status or other factors
that are indicative of losses in the group. The Group estimates regulatory and IFRS ¢ LGDs on a
different basis. Under IFRS 9, LGD rates are estimated for the Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3 and
purchased or originated credit impaired (POCI) [FRS 9 segment of each asset class. The inputs for
these LGD rates are estimated and, where possible, calibrated through back testing against recent
recoveries. These are repeated for each economic scenario as appropriate.

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default. The Group derives the EAD from
the current exposure to the counterparty and potential changes to the current amount allowed under
the contract including amortisation. The EAD of a financia! asset is its gross carrying amount, For
lending commitments and financial guarantees, the EAD includes the amount drawn, as well as
potential future amounts that may be drawn under the contract, which are estimated based on
historical observations and forward-locking forecasts.

The exposure at default (EAD) represents the gross carrying amourt of the financial instruments
subject to the impairment calculation, addressing both the obligor's ability to increase its exposure
while approaching default and potential early repayments tco.

To calculate the EAD for a Stage 1 loan, the Group assesses the possible defauit events within 12
menths for the calculation of the 12 months ECL. However, if a Stage 1 loan that is expecied to
default in the 12 months from the balance sheet date and is also expected to cure and subsequently
default again, then all linked default events are taken info account. For Stage 2, Stage 3 and
purchased or originated credit impaired {POC!) financial assets, the exposure at default is
considered for events over the lifetime of the instruments.

The Group determines EADs by modelling the range of possible exposure outcomes at various
peints in time, corresponding the multiple scenarios. The IFRS 9 PDs are then assigned fo each
geonomic scenario based on the outcome of Group's models.

Significant increase in credit risk

The Group continucusly monitors all assets subject to ECLs. In order to determine whether an
instrument or a portfolio of instruments is subject to 12 month ECL or LTECL, the Group assesses
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. The Group
considers an exposure to have significantly increased in credit risk when the IFRS 9 lifetime PD has
doubled since initial recognition.

The Group aiso applies a secondary qualitative method for triggering a significant increase in credit
risk for an asset, such as moving a customer/facility to the watch list, or the account becoming
forborne. In certain cases, the Group may alse consider that some events are a significant increase
in credit risk as opposed to a default. Regardiess of the change in credit grades, if contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, the credit risk is deemed to have increased significantly
since initial recognition.

When estimating ECLs on a collective basis for a group of similar assets, the Group applies the same

principles for assessing whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.
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{a} Credit risk {continued)
Measurement of ECL {continued)
Contingent liabililies and commitments
To meet the financial needs of customers, the Group enters into various irrevocable commitments and
contingent liabilities. These consist of financial guarantees, letters of credit and other commitments to
lend. Even though these obligations may not be recognised on the statement of financial position, they
contain credit risk and, therefore, form par of the overall risk of the Group.
Letters of credit and guarantees (including standby letters of credit) commit the Group to make
payments on behalf of customers in the event of a specific act, generally related to the import or

export of goods. Guarantees and standby letters of credit carry a similar credit risk to loans.

The nominal values of such commitments are listed below: -

2021 2020

Shs’000 Shs’000

Undrawn overdrafts 42 562 44,718
Letters of credit 169,046 136,208
Guarantees 976,588 685,518
1,188,186 866,443

Allowance for impairment losses {19.984) (7.662)
1,168212 858,781

The loss allowance on cutstanding commitments and financial guarantees is carried in other liabilities
and therefere no impact on the carrying amounts.
Impairment losses for loans and advances

The reconciliation from the opening to the closing balance of the loss allowance for loans and advances
has been disclosed under Note 21.

An estimate of the fair values of collateral held against loans and advances to customers is shown

below:
2021 2020
Shs'000 Shs’000
Against impaired accounis 16,973,983 13,406,969
Against accounts not impaired 71,086,209 58,608,533

88,060,182 72,015,502
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Financial risk management {continued)
(b} Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet ifs liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation.

Management of liquidity risk

Typically, the Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected gperaticnal
expenses for a period of 60 days, including the servicing of financial obligations; this exclides the
potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural
disasters.

To limit this risk, management has arranged for diversified funding sources in addition to its core
deposit base, and adopted a policy of managing assets with liquidity in mind and monitering future
cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis. The Group has developed internal control processes and
contingency plans for managing liquidity risk.

This incorporates an assessment of expected cash flows and the availability of high-grade cellateral
which could be used o secure additional funding if required. The Group maintains a portfolio of
highly markeiable and diverse assets that are assumed to be easily liquidated in the event of an
unforeseen interruption in cash flow. The Group also has lines of credit that it can access to meet
liguidity needs.

In accordance with the Group's policy, the liquidity position is assessed under a variety of scenarios,
giving due consideration to stress factors relating to both the market in general and specitically to the
Group. Net liquid assets consist of cash, short-term bank deposits and liquid debt securities available
for immediate sale, less deposits from banks and borrowings due to mature within the next month.

The Group stresses the importance of current accounts and savings accounts as sources of funds to
finance lending to customers. They are monitored using the advances to deposit ratio, which
compares loans and advances to customers as a percentage of core customer current and savings
accounts, together with term funding with a remaining term to maturity in excess of one year.

Treasury maintains a portfolio of sheri-term liquid assets, largely made up of short-term liquid
investment securities, loans and advances to hanks and other inter-bank facilities, to ensure that
sufficient liquidity is maintained within the Group as a whole. The daily liquidity position is monitered
and regular liquidity stress testing is conducted under a variety of scenaries covering both normal
and more severe market conditions. All liquidity policies and procedures are subjest to review and
approval by Board Risk Management Committee.

Exposure to liguidity rnisk
The key measure used by the Group for managing liquidity risk is the ratic of net liquid assets to
deposits from customers. For this purpose, net liquid assets are considered as including cash and

cash equivalents and investment securities for which there is an active and liquid market less any
deposits from financial institutions and commitments maturing within the next 81 days.
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Financial risk management {continued)

{b) Liquidity risk (continued)

Details of the reported Group ratio of net iiquid assets to customers’ deposits at the reporting date
and during the reporting period were as follows

At 31 December

Average for the year

Maximum for the year
Minimum for the year

Minimum statutory requirement
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2021

22.87%
20.80%
22.50%
16.45%
20.00%

2020

20.90%
18.03%
21.98%
17.50%
20.00%
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Notes {continued)

4 Financial risk management (continued)
{b} Liguidity risk {continued}
Liguidity reserves

The foliowing table sets out the components of the Group's liquidity reserves.

2021 2020
Liquidity reserves Shs’000 Shs'000
Cash at hand 538,629 761,310
Balances with commercial banks 345,779 777,515
Balances with Central Bank of Kenya 1,823,685 745,680
Placements with other banks 33.311 202697
Government securities 6,550,168 T.105617
Total liquidity reserves 9,291,572 9,692,819

{c} Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates
and equity prices wilt affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.

Management of market risks

The objective of market risk measurement is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable limits while optimising the return on risk. The Group’s Treasury is responsible for the
development of detailed market risk management policies and for day-to-day implementation of those
policies.

Furthermore, it includes the protection and enhancement of the statement of financial position and
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and facilitating business growth within a
centrolled and transparent risk management framework.

All foreign exchange risk within the Group is managed by the Treasury department. Accordingly, the
foreign exchange position is treated as part of the Group’s trading porifolios for risk management
purposes.

Overall authority for market risk management is vested in the Beoard Risk Management Committee. The
Finance and Treasury departments in collaboration with the Risk Management department are
responsible for the development of detailed market risk management policies {subject to review and
approval by Board Risk Management Committee) and for the day-to-day review of their implementation.
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Notes {continued}

4 Financial risk management {continued)
{c} Market risk (continued)
{i) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and liabilities. The Group's exposure to foreign
currency risk arose from assets denominated in US Dollars, EUR and GBP was as follows:

31 December 2021 Uss GBP Euro Total
Shs’ 000 Shs' 000 Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000G
Assels
Cash and cash equivalents 370,174 (7171) 52,510 415513
Loans and advances to customers 3,391,035 39,598 88 3,430,732
Other assets 43,744 749 414 44 907
Total assets 3,804,853 33,176 53,023 3,891,152
Liabilities
Customer deposits 1,132,793 10,233 27,968 1,170,994
Borrowed funds 2,800,745 - - 2,800,748
(ther liabilities (192,278} 2,031 2,545 {187,702}
Total liabilities 3,741,264 12,284 30,513 3,784,041
Net tinancial position 63,689 20,912 22,510 107,111

31 December 2020

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1,804 078 . - 1,804,078
Leans and advances to customers 3,313,402 41,091 449 3,354,542
Other assets 281,040 571 433 282,044
Total assets 5,388,520 41,662 482 5,440 664
Liabilities B
Customer deposits 1,470,702 5,753 14,151 1,490,607
Borrowed funds 3,628,227 - - 3,628,227
Other liabilities - 91,313 92,589 183,902
Total liabilities 5,098,829 87,086 106,740 5,302,736
Net financial position 289,591 (55,404} {106,259 137,928
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4 Financial risk management {continued)

{c} Market risk {continued)

The following significant exchange rates applied during the period

Average
rates
2021
US Dollar 109,65
EUR 129.68
GBP 150.68

Sensitivity analysis on exchange ratfes

Closing rates

Average
rates
2021 2020
113.15
128.18
152.86

106.54
121.71
136.79

Closing
rates
2020

108.20
134.28
149.24

The analysis below shows the effect of a reascnably possible movement of the foreign currency rates
against the Kenya Shilling {all other variables being constant}.

2021 2020
Change in Effecton Effecton Change Effect on Effect on
currency  profit before equity  incurrency profit before equity
income tax income tax
Shs” 000  Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000
US$ 10% 6,369 4,458 10% 29,953 22,468
GBP 10% 2,251 1,576 10% {5,540) {4,155)
EURC 10% 2,091 1,464 10% {10,628} {7,969)
{1} Sensitivity analysis to interest rate risk
The following table sets cut the components of the Group's financial instruments subject fo interest
rate risk;
2021 2020
Assets Interest rate Shs’000 Shs’00
Loans and advances 8.53% 34,682,825 36,998,473
Government securities 11.70% 6,550,168 7,105,617
Placements with banks 3.53% 33,311 202,435
Total liquidity reserves 41,276,104 44,306,525
Liabilities
Deposits 4.03% 38,316,520 41,134,608
Borrowings 7.39% 4,298,349 3628,227
Total liquidity reserves 42,614,869 44,762,835
Interest rate sensitivity gap {1,338,765)} (456,310)

At 31 December 2021, if interest rates at that date had been 100 basis points lower with all other
variables held constant, pre-tax loss for the year would have been Shs 2,308,510 (2020; Shs
18,627,103} lower arising mainly as a result of lower interest income and other components of equity
would have been Shs 2,309,510 (2020: Shs 18,627,103) lower arising mainly as a result of lower

interest income loans and advances.
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4 Financial risk management (continued}
(c) Market risk {continued}
(it~ Other price risk
The Group does not hold any financial instruments subject to price risk.
{d} Operational risk

The Group's objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses
and damage to e Gioup's eputslion with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures
that restrict initiative and creativity.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of conirols 1o address operational
risk is assigned to senior management within each business unit. The responsibility is supported by
the development of overail Group standards for the management of operational risks. Compliance
with Group standards is supported by a programme of periodic reviews undertaken by internal audit.
The results of internal audit reviews are discussed with the management of the business unit o which
they relate, with summaries submitted to the Board Audit committee and senior management of the
Group.

Risk measurement and control

interest rate, credit, liquidity, operational risk and other risks are actively managed by the Group’s
independent risk control to ensure comptiance with the Group's risk timits. The Group's risk limits are
assessed regularly to ensure their appropriateness given the Group's cbjectives and strategies and
current market conditions.

{e} Capital management

The responsibility of capital management lies with the assets and liabilities management committee
which ensures that all strategies conform to the Group's risk appetite and levels of exposure. The
committee is alsc responsible for recommending to the Board of directors, prudent capital
management policies and procedures that will enable the Group to achieve its objectives and goals
while operating in full compliance with all capital requirements.

The Central Bank of Kenya sets and monitors capital requirements for banks and other non-bank
financial institutions. In implementing the current capital requirements Central Bank of Kenya requires
the Group to maintain a prescribed ratio of {otal risk weighted assets. This requirement is calculated
for market risk in the banking portfolio of HFC Limited.

The reguiatory capital is analysed in two tiers:

+ Tier 1 capital includes ordinary share capital, share premium, perpetual bonds, retained earnings,
translation reserve and non-controlling interest after deduction of goodwil and intangible assets
and other regulatory adjustments relating to items that are inciuded in equity but are treated
differently for capital adequacy purposes.

» Tier 2 capital includes qualfying subordinated liabilities, collective impairment allowances and the
element of the fair value reserves relating to unrealized gains on equity instruments classified as
available for sale.

The Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and ‘o sustain future development of the business. The impact of the level of capital on
shareholders’ return is also recognised and the Group recognizes the need to maintain a balance
between the higher returns that might be possible with greater gearing and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position.
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4 Financial risk management {continued)

{e} Capital management (continued)

The Group and its individually regulated operations have complied with all externally imposed capital
requirements throughout the year except for core and total capital ratio. The Banking subsidiary, HFC
Limited, received Shs 1 billion tier 2 capital injection from Britam Holdings Plc, the largest shareholder
of HF Group Plc, on 1 February 2021.There has been no material change in the Bank's management
of capital during the period. The regulatery capital position for HFC Limited, the Group's banking

subsidiary, as at 31 December 2021 was as follows:

Tier 1 capital

Ordinary share capital
Share premium

Retained earnings
Deferred income tax asset

Total tier 1 capifal
Tier 2 capital
Subordinated debt
Regulatory reserves
Total tier 2 capital
Total regulatory capital

Risk weighted assets

Capital ratios

Total regulatory capital expressed as a percentage of total risk-

weighted assets
CBK minimum requirement

Total tier 1 capital expressed as a percentage of risk-weighted assets

CBK minimum requirement

2021 2020
Shs'000 Shs'000
5,000,000 5,000,000
3513662 3,513,662
(4,354,055)  (4,226,070)

(968.004)  (665.745)
3191513 3,621,847

1,000,000

480,411 578,502
1,480,411 578,502
4 671,824 4,200,349
38,435,563 46,280,127
2021 2020
12.29% 9.08%
14.50% 14.50%
8.42% 7.83%
10.50% 10.50%

The Group was in breach of the regulatory capital ratios as at 31 December 2021, which were
communicated to the Central Bank of Kenya {CBK}. No penalties or fines were imposed by the CBK.
The Group submitted their capital restoration plan and Bank's turnaround strategy to the CBK. The
details of the directors’ plans for the future have been detailed under Note 2 {a).

Central Bank of Kenya required the Group to maintain a minimum core capital of Shs 1 billion as at 31
December 2021. The Group is compliant with this requirement. The Group's objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an optimal capita! structure to reduce the cost of
capital. in order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may limit the amount of dividends

paid te shareholders.
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5 Operating segments (continued)

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

2021 2020
Shs’000 Shs’'000

Net interest income
Total net intergst income for reportable segments 1,989,356 1,831,984
Other interest income adjustments (125,908) (81,928)
Consgclidated net interest income 1,863 488 1,850,058
Non-interest income
Tetal non-interest income for reportable segments 522,386 466,843
Other non-interest income (19,883) 61,825
Consolidated non-interest income 502,483 528,668
Profit or loss
Tota! profit or loss for reportable segments {912,258} (1,757,257)
Other profit or loss 36,506 (18,625)
Consolidated profit before income tax {875,7562) {1,775,682)
Asgsets
Total assets for reportable segments 55,469,429 57.874,492
Other assets (2,565,911} (2.429,243)
Consolidated total assets 52,903,518 55,445,249
Liabilities
Total liabilities for reportable segments 47,295,136 49,106,856
Other liabilities (2,327,938) (2,223,495}
Consolidated total liabilities 44 867,199 46,883,461
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§ Interest income and expense

{a} Interest income

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
Shs’000 Shs'000 Shs’000 Shs’000
Loans and advances 3,237.688 3,668,778 - -
Loan origination fees 52,083 16,202 - -
Financial assets at amortised cost 21,768 41,409 - -
Financial assets at FVOCI 863,638 555,322 - -

3,975,185 4,281,711

{b} Interest expense

Deposits from banks 168,375 154,218 -
Deposits from customers 1,519,600 1,798,430
Borrowings 335,647 379,112
Lease liabilities 71,616 56,488

2,005,238 2,389,248 -

7 Fee and commission income

Fees and commissions charged for services provided or received by the Group and Company are
recognised as the service is performed.

Group Company
2024 2020 2021 2020
Shs'000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000

Service fees and Commission fTransactional banking 196,146 169,103 - s
Custodial services 15,267 5,138 - -
House sales commission 4 522 37,853 - -

2158356 212,196 - -
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8 Net trading income

Foreign currency exchange gains
Fair value loss on derivatives

9 QOther income

Rental income

Gain on sale of investment property
House sales income

Other

Insurance commission

Gain on disposal of equipment

10 Other operating expenses

Occupancy expenses

Deposit Protection Fund payment
Cost of sold houses

Marketing expenses

Information technology expenses
Legal expenses

Office expenses

General administration expenses

Group
2021

Shs'000 Shs'000

Company

2020 2021
Shs'000 Shs'000

77,332 85270

{28,982)

2020

48,350 85,270

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs'000 Shs’000
69,958 104,422 -
1,150
47783 : . -
31,888 26,441 131,752 126,183
70,887 67,826 : -
42 7 -
221,748 198,789 131,752 126,183
61,322 58,382 -
76,888 57,771 ;
45 233 . .
87,696 69,373 2.885 5,613
328,498 401 079 - :
123,066 312,260 - -
169,798 757474 82.804 282 891
414,342 268,512 23.880 18,329
(1,306,844} 1,925,861 109,668 308,833
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7"

12

13

{a)

Employee benefits

The following items are included in salaries and employee benefits:

Salaries and other staff costs

Remuneration ¢ executive directors

NSSF contributions

Contributions to the defined contribution
refirement scheme

Average number of employees

Depreciation and amortisation

Cepreciation of property and equipment
(Note 19}

Depreciation of invesiment property (Note
23)

Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 20}
Amortisation of right-of-use asset (Note 35

Income tax
Income tax credit

Current income tax at 30% {2020 25%)
Prior year under provision of current tax
Ceferred tax movement (Note 28)

Prior year deferred tax (under)fover
provision {Note 26)

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs'000
1,053,724  1,103698 38,968 41,414
50,293 51,144 16,865 15,027
1,656 1,102 4 5
76,863 71,219 182 107
1,182,536 1,227,163 56,019 56,553
447 456 2 1
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs'000 Shs’000
113,596 150,162 134 132
24 545 31,348 -
231,139 226,931 -
86,685 91,951 -
455,968 500,382 134 132
24,906 3,447 -
{70) . . ;
{306,423} {80.,307) (11,627) {11,097)
(B75) 7,841 (946) -
{282.462) {69,019) (12,673} {11,097)
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13

B

14

Income tax {continued)

The tax on the Group's and Company’s loss before income tax differs from the theoretical amount

using the basic tax rate as follows:

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020

Shs’000 Shs'000 Shs’000 Shs’000
Loss before income tax {875,753) {1,775,882) {34,070} (239,335}
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 30% (262,726) {443 871} {10,221} {59,834)
{2020: 25%)
Effect of changes in tax rates {13,385) {1,850)
Prior year under provision of current tax - - .
Prior year (under)/over provision of {875} 7,841 -
deferred tax
Tax effect of non-deductible costs and tax- (18,861} 380,498 (2,352) 50,587
axempt income e =
Income tax credit {282,462} {69,019} (12,573} {11,097
Current income tax recoverable
At start of year 344,929 151,220 41,682 34,157
Charge for the year {24,908) (3,447} - .
Paid during the year 7,669 197,157 5,265 7.525
Reclassification from withholding tax 15,083 - - .
Prior year under provision - -
At end of year 342,746 344,830 46,947 41,682

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated based on the loss attributable to shareholders divided by the

number of ordinary shares in issue in each year as follows:

2021

Shs'000

Net loss for the year attributable to shareheolders (563,291}
Number of ordinary shares in issue (000's) 384,614
Weighted average number of ordinary shares {000's) 384514
Basic earnings per share (1.54)
Weighted earnings per share {1.54)

2020
Shs’000

(1,706,863}
384,614
384,614

(4.44)
(4.44)
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15 Dividends
{a} Proposed dividends
Proposed dividends are accounted for as a separate component of equity until they have been ratified
at an annual general meeting. No final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021
{2020: Nil) has been proposed. No interim dividend was paid during the year (2020: Nil}. Therefore,
ne dividend has been declared for the year. Issued and fully paid ordinary shares were 384,614,168 as
at 31 December 2021 {2020: 384,614,168).

(b) Reconciliation of dividends payable — Group and Company:

2021 2020
Shs* 00 Shs’000
At start of year 6,361 13,023
Proposed dividends (prior year) . .
Transfer from retained earnings - .
Dividends paid during the year (5,115) {6,562)
At end of year 246 6,361
16 {a}Cash and balances with banks
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
Shs’000 Shs 000 Shs’000 Shs’000
Cash at hand 538,629 761,310 - -
Balances with commercial banks 345,779 777,515 2,317 20,196
Placements with other banks (Note
17} 33,311 202,897
Balances with Centrail Bank
of Kenya:
- Unrestricted 228,073 (942,556}
- Restricted (Cash Reserve Ratio) 1,585,612 1,688,236
2,741,404 2487202 237 20,196
Allowance for impairment losses (19 {550)
2,741,385 2,486,652 2317 20,196
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16 {a} Cash and balances with banks

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs'000
Cash and balances with banks 2,708 074 2,284 217 2,317 20,196
Placement with other banks 33,311 202,435 -
2,741,385 2,486,652 2,317 20,196
Movement in restricted balances: 2021 2020
Shs’000 Shs'000
Group
At start of year 1,688,236 1,848,756
Movement during the year {92,624 (261,520}
At end of year 1,595612 1,688,236

The Cash Reserve Ratio (CRR) is non-interest earning and is based on the value of deposits as adjusted
for the Central Bank v .. va requirements. At 31 December 2021, the Cash Reserve Ratic was 5.25%
(2020: 4.25%) of all deposits. These funds are available for use by the Group in its day-to-day operations
in a limited way provided that on any given day this balance does not fall below 3.00% requirement and
provided that the overall average in the month is at least 5.25%. The restricted balances above are not
avaitable for use in the Group's day to day operations.

16 {b}Net debt reconciliation

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for each of the periods

presented.
Group 2021 2020
Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 16{a)}) 1,204,273 1,058416
Liguid investments.
Investment in government securities {Note 18) 6,550,168 6,8458617
Borrowings - repayabie within one year (Note 30) (779,648}  (2,151,996)
Borrowings - repayable after one year (Note 30} (3,518,701) (1,476,231)
Lease liabilities - repayable within one year (Note 35) (142,810} (142,921)
Lease liabilities - repayable within one year (Note 35) (436,593} (507.830)
Net cash 2,878,689 3,625,085
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16 {b}Net debt reconciliation (continued)

Group 2021 2020
Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000
Cash and liguid investments 7,754,441 7,804,033
Gross debt - fixed interest rates {2,453,584) (3,318 673)
Gross debt - variable interest rates {2,424,168) (960,305)
2876689 3625055
Liquid assets Borrowings Leases Total
Cashand Investment Due within  Due after 1 Lease
cash securities 1 year year liabilities
equivalents
Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000  Shs’' 000 Shs’ 000

Year ended 31

December 2021
At start of year 1,058,416 6,845,617 (2151,998) (1.476,231) (650,751) 3,625,055
Cash flows 126 070 {295,150 1,372,348 (2,042 470) 142,864  (696,238)
Non-cash

movemenis - (299) = {(71.617) {71,916}
Foreign exchange 1,287 - - = 1,287
At end of year 1,185,773 6,550,168 {779.648) (3.518,701) (579,403) 2,858,189
Year ended 31

December 2020
At start of year 2,337,779 4,102,869 (1,768,578) (4,034,145} (714,751} (77,826)
Cash flows (1,283,327} 2,819,800 (382,418} 2,557,914 130,488 3,832,457
Non-cash : (77,052} - : (66,488) {143,540}

movements
Foreign exchange 13,964 - 13,964
At end of year 1,058,416 8,845,617 (2,151,996} (1,476,231) (650,751) 3,625,055
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17

18

Placements with other banks

Placements with other banks
Less: Allowance for impairment losses

Group
2021 2020
Shs’000 Shs'000
33,555 202,697
{244} (262)
33,311 202,435

The weighted average effective interest rate on placements with other banks was 3. 53% (2020: 5.97%).

Investment in government securities

Held at amortised cost

Treasury bilis and bonds

FVOCI
Treasury bonds

Group
2021
Shs'000

1,825,422

4,724,745

6,550,168

2020
Shs’000

1,941,696

5,163,921

7,1058617

The weighted average effective interest rate on investment securities at 31 December was 11.70% {202¢:

10.58%).

The table below shows the movement in the investments in the year:
Amortised cost

At start of year

Purchases during the year

Sales/maturities during the year
Less: Allowance for impairment losses

At end of vear

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
At start of year

Purchases during the vear
Sales/maturities during the year
(Loss}/gains on fair valuation

At end of year

Total investment securities

80

Group
2021 2020
Shs’000 Shs’000
1,941,686 828,621
1,185,750 1,680,000
(1,301,662) {366,925}
(362) .
1.825422 1,041 6886
5,163,821 3,974,248
8,650,050 2.850.000
{9,088,926) {1,584,555)
{299) {75,772}
4,724,746 5.163.921
6,550,168 7105617
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18

18

Investment in government securities {continued}

Maturity analysis for the investments in government securities

Maturing within 80 days
Maturing after 80 days

Total

Property and equipment

{a) Group

Year ended 31 December 2021

Cost or valuation
At start of year
Additions
Disposals

At end of year

Comprising:
At cost
At valuation

Accumulated depreciation
At start of year

Charge for the year
Disposais

Transfers

At end of year

Net book value at end of year

Group
2021 2020
Shs’000 Shs’000
40,000 260,000

6,510,168 8,845,617

6,550,168 7,105,817

Freehold Buildings Furniture, Total
land fixtures,
equipment &
motor vehicles

Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000  Shs’000

62,000 905,183 1,267,451 2,234,634

3 . 8,727 9727

(445} .

62,000 905,183 1,276,732 2,243,815

10,000 655,183 1276732 1,941,915

52,000 250,000 - 302,000

62,000 905,183 1,276,732 2,243,815

36,956 959 998 996,854

15,579 98,020 113,599

- {166} (166)

{437) (437)

52,535 1,057,415 1,108,950

52,000 852,648 219,317 1,133,965
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18 Property and equipment {continued)

(b} Group Freshold Buildings Furniture, Total
land fixtures,
equipment &
motor
vehicles
Year ended 31 December Shs’000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000
2020
Cost or valuation
At start of year 62,000 805,183 1,239,745 2,106,928
Additions - - 32,409 32,408
Disposals : (218} {216)
Transfers . - {4,488} {4,488)
Revaluation _ 100,000 . 100,000
At end of year 62,000 905,183 1,267,451 2,234634
Comprising:
At cost 10,000 855,183 1,266,591 1,931,774
At valuation 52,000 250,000 860 302,860
62,000 905,183 1,267,451 2,234,634

Accumulated depreciation

At start of year . 61,774 826,749 888,523
Charge for the year - 12,258 137,804 150,162
Disposals - . {166} {166)
Transfers - - {4,489) {4,489}
Revaluation gain . {37,076} : (37,0676}
At end of year - 36,956 959,998 996,954
Net book value at end of year 62,000 868,227 307,453 1,237,680
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18 Property and equipment {continued}

The land and buildings were revalued on 16 December 2020 by Tyson's Limited, a firm of independent
professional valuers based on open market value approach. The resulting surplus was credited to
revaluation reserve. The motor vehicle was revalued at 860,000 in year 2018 after being fully
depreciated while still in use. The net book value of properties at their historical cost is as follows:

2021 2020

Shs™000 Shs’000

Free hold land 52,000 52,000
Buildings 555,308 584,350
£07,308 636,350

The historical cost of free hold land is Shs 52,000,000 and buildings is Shs 655,290,000

Included in equipment are assets with a gross value of Shs 680,987,412 (2020: Shs 323,926,246) which
are fully depreciated and still in use. Such assets would have aftracted a notional depreciation of Shs
85,123,426 (2020: Shs 84,785,249). Revaluation of the Bank's assets is done after every 3 years.

The net book value of the revalued motor vehicle at its historical cost is as follows

2021 2020
Shs"000 Shs’000C

Motor vehicle 344 518

{b} Company
Furniture, fixtures,
equipment & motor
vehicles
2021 2020
Shs’000 Shs’000

Cost or valuation

At start of year 801 801
Additions 118 -
At end of year 819 8C1

Accumulated depreciation

At start of year 383 251
Charge for the year 134 132
At end of year 517 383
Net book value at end of year 402 418
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20 Intangible assets

Cost:
At start of year
Addittons during the year

At end of year

Accumutated amortisation
At start of year
Amortisation during the year

At end of year

Net book value at end of year

Group
2021 2020
Shs'000 Shs’000
1,860,391 1,793,711
47,758 66,680
1,908,148 1,860,391
1,157,137 930,206
231,138 226,931
1,388,276 1,157,137
519,873 703,254

Included in the intangible assets is the Group's banking subsidiary, HFC Limited Core Banking
Software at a cost of Shs 1,294,805,015 that was rolled out on 1 January 2016, whose estimated

useful life is 8 years.

21 Investments in subsidiary companies and joint ventures

{a} Subsidiaries

HFC Limited

HF Development and investment Limited {HFD1)
First Permanent {East Africa) Limiled {FPEAL)
HF Insurance Agency Limited (HFIA)

84

100%
100%
100%
100%

Company
2021
Shs’000

8,513,662
1,243,912
5,020
5,000.00

9,767,594

2020
Shs’000

8,513,662
1,243,912
§,020

100

89,767,694




HF Group Plg
Financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Notes {continued)

21 Investments in subsidiary companies (continued)

{b) Investment in Joint ventures & associate

At start of year

Kahawa Cowns Limited
Precious Heights Limited
Richland Development Limited
Claycity Limited

Theta Dam Estate Limited

Group’s share of loss in joint ventures
Kahawa Downs Limited

Precious Heights Limited

Richland Development Limited

Claygity Limited

Theta Dam Estate Limited

Capital reduction Theta Dam Estate

Atend of year

50%
50%
50%
33%
50%

Group
2021
Shs'000

118,871
88,101
96,861

489,330

840,817

1,635,079

(7.870)
(2,060)

(94)
(3,362)
(2,354)

{15,740)

(75,000}

1,544,339

2020
Shs’000

151,474

90,906
155,789
490,604
842,441

1,731,214

(31,503)
(2,805)
(58,928)
(1,274)
{1,623)

(96,133)

1,635,079

The Group has classified its interest in these entities as a joint venture, which is equity accounted.
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HF Group Pic
Financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Notes {continued)

22 Loans and advances at amortised cost

Group

Gross loans and advances io banks
Less: provision for impairment losses

Net loans and advances fo banks

Gross loans and advances to customers
Less: Provision for impairment losses

Net loans and advances to customers

Maturing:

Within five years

Over five years o ten years
Cver ten years to fifteen years
Cver fifteen years

(3rnss Inans and advances

2021 2020
Shs’000 Shs'000
201,650

(141)

201,509

38,049,266 40,428,074
(3356.641)  (3,631,110)
34,692,625 36,796,964
13,646,339 13,318,023
11,927,124 13,126,505
7,419,557 8,848,199
5,056,246 5,336,987
38,049,266 40,629,724

During the year, HFC Limited, the banking subsidiary of the Group, purchased properties worth
Shs. 152,597,000 {2020 Shs 31,500,000) from distressed borrowers in full realization of the debt
owed to the Company. These properties have been classified as investment properties (Refer

Note 28).
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
31 December 2021 12-month ECL. Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000
Gross lpans and advances 22,086,457 7,280,049 8,672,760 38,048,266
Loss allowance {13,152} (399.871) (2,943,618) (3,356,641}
Net loans and advances 22,073,305 6,890,178 5,729,142 34 692,625
31 December 2020
Gross foans and advances 23,272,585 6,558,292 10,798,847 40,628,724
Loss allowance (78,051) {349,846) (3,203,354} {3,631.251)
Net loans and advances 23,194 534 5,208,446 7,595 493 36,998,473
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Financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Notes {continued)

22 Loans and advances {continued}

Gross Net
2021 2020 2021 2020
Shs’ 000 Shs' 000 Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000
Current portion 7,319,683 8,763,992 6,673,853 8,110,768
Non-current portion 30,720583 31,865,732 28,018,672 28,887,705
38,040266 40,628,724 34,682,625 36,988 473
Impairment of loans and advances
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
12-month Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
ECL
Year ended 31 December 2021 Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000
Loss allowance at start of year 78,051 345,848 3,203,354 3631,251
Movements during the year:
ransfer to 12 months ECL. 61,241 {45,786) (15,455}
ransfer to lifetime ECL not credit {10,747) 48,772 (36,025}
mipained
ransfer to lifetime ECL credit impaired (1,016} {4,520} 5,536 -
et remeasurement of ioss allowance (151,196) (95,805} 1,323,931 1,076,930
et financial assets originated 52,641 164,883 142,508 360,033
inancial assets derecognised {15,822) (15,519} (893,407} (824,748
Write offs {786,825) {786,825)
Loss allowance as at end of year 13,152 399,871 2,943,618 3,356,641
Year ended 31 December 2020
Loss allowance at start of year 42,984 86,683 3,477,370 3,607,037
Movements during the year: =
ransfer from 12 months ECL {5,996) 55603 383
ransfer from lifetime ECL not credit
mipained 23,849 (26,849} 2,900
ransfer from lifetime ECL credit
mipaired 32,647 111,247 (143,894) -
et remeasurement of loss allowance (51,516) (86,035) 404,330 266,779
et financial assets originated 44 208 263,835 83,783 391,926
inancial assets derecognised (B.225) {4,738) 3418500 (354 813)
Write offs . (279,678} (279,678)
Loss allowance as at end of year 78,051 349,846 3,203,354 3,631,251
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Financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Notes {continued)

22 Loans and advances at amortised cost {continued)

2021
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
12-month  Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
ECL
Year ended 31 December 2021 Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000
Gross carrying amount at start of year 23,272,585 8,558,292 10,798,847 40,629,724
fl’ransfer to 12 months ECL 1,614,743 {1.563,171} {51,572) '
[Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit (2,193,566} 2,307 147 (113,581}
mpaired
Transfer to lifetime ECL credit impaired (86,215) (295,908} 382,123 -
et remeasurement (1,842,437) (131,172} (333,792 (2,407,401} |
et financial assets originated 5,381,775 1.486,267 276,304 7,144 346
Financial assets derecognised {3,960,428) (1,071,408} (2,285,569) (7,317.403)
{1,186,128) 731,757 (2,126,087} {2,580,458}
Gross carrying amount at end of year 22,086,457 7,280,049 8,672,760 38,049,266
Year ended 31 December 2020
Gross carrying amount at start of year 28,351,198 3,719,574 12,316,003 42,386,775
ransier to 12 months ECL 1,024,611 {576,987) {447 .624) -
ransfer to lifetime ECL not credit
mpaired {1,900,044) 1,900,044 - -
ransfer to lifetime ECL credit impaired (103,691} {128.412) 233,103 .
&1 remeasurement {1,843 844) 219,589 51,941 (1,572.114)
el financial assets originated 1,763,479 1,799,287 187,970 3,760,745
inancial assets derecognised (2,019,324} (373,813)  (1,552,548)  (3.945683)
{3,078,613) 2,838,718 {1,517,168)  (1,757.0581)
Gross carrying amount at end of year 23,272,585 6,558,292 10,798,847 40,628,724

The weighted average effective interest rate on loan advances to customers as at 31 December

2021 was 13.4% (2020: 10.28%).
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Financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Neotes {continued}
22 Loans and advances at amortised cost (continued}
Loss allowance on financial instruments

The following table provides a reconciliation between the ‘impairment losses on financial instruments’ line
item in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Leoans Loans and Guarantees Cash and Other Total
and advances to  and letters cash financial
advances customers of credit equivalents  assets and
to banks receivables
Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs'000 Shs’000 Shs’G00 Shs'G00
Year ended 31
December 2021
Net re-
measurement of
loss allowance - 1,076,830 12,321 {169} 8,942 1,104,389
Financial assets
derecognised - (924,748) . ‘ . (924,748)
New financial
assets originated
or purchased
- 102,564 . . 102,554
Modification
losses - (1,570 - - . {(1.570;
- 253,176 12,321 {169} 8,942 280,645
Year ended 31
December 2020
Net re-
measurement of
loss allowance 127 266,779 7,040 {434) 28,818 300,430
Financial assets
derecognised - (354,813} - . - (354.813)
New financial
assets originated
or purchased - 435,205 - . - 435,205
Modification losses - 24,247 . . : 24,247
127 371,418 7.040C {434} 26,918 405,069
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Notes [continued)

22 Loans and advances at amortised cost {continued)

Analysis of loans per segment

Segment

Commercial
IPF

Micro
Mortgage
Projects
Unsecured

Gross
Shs' 000

3,988,518
30,764

10
24,138,451
8,955,214
936,309

38,049,266

2021
Loss

allowance
Shs' 000

(352,472)
(997)

GH
(927,455)
(1,894 928)
(180,783)

(3,356,641)

Carrying
amount
Shs* 000

3,636,046
29,767

4
23,210,988
7,080,286
755,526

34,682,625

Gross
Shs 000

2,949,882
53,280

18

26,397 851
10,780,834
447,981

40,629,724

2020
Loss
allowance
Shs'000

(314,438)
(1,117}
{1
(1,300,400
(1,882,243}
(133,042)

(3,631,252)

Carrying
amount
Shs’000

2,635,514
52,174

5
25,087,251
8,898,591
314,938

36,098,473
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HF Group Pic
Financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Notes {continued)

23 Other assets

Trade receivables
Less: Allowance for impairment losses

Payment on deposits
Prepayments
Receivable from KMRC
Foreclosed assets

12-month ECL:
At start of year
Re-measurement during the year

At end of year

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000
521,542 452,108 16,825 925
{40,504) (24,825) (6,970) .
481,038 427283 8,855 925
162,503 168,338 500 720
50,000 50,000 - .
381,200 337,789

1,074,741 983,380 10,355 1,645
{24 825) {96,269) (57,259)
(15,679} 71,444 {6,970} 57,259

{40,504) {24,825) 6,970

Other assets are settled no more than 12 months after the reporting date. Ali the balances are non-interest

bearing.

24 Investment in property fund

Assets as at start of the year
Impairment losses

As at end of the year

2021 2020
Shs'000 Shs'000
324,251 788,040

65,956 {463,789)
380,207 324,251

The assets owned by the property fund will be realized progressively and the proceeds distributed
to the partners in accordance with the partnership agreement. Crescent Finco will receive cash
distribution first until its investment plus a return of 12% is fully paid. The residue wili be

distributed to HFDI Limited.
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HF Group Flc
Financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Notes (continued)

25 Inventories

Group
2021 2020
$hs’000 Shs'000
Inventories {housing units} 462 658 514,422

Inventories held comprise of 2- and 3-bedroom units at Komarock Heights.
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HF Group Plc
Financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Notes (continued)

26 Deferred income tax (continued}

27

{b) Company

At start of year  Recognised in At end of
profit or loss year
Year ended 31 December 2021 Shs’000 Shs'000 Shs’000
Property and equipment (27) 13 (14
Trading losses 10,978 (1.512) 9,466
General provisions 26,253 14,071 40,325
Net deferred tax 37,204 12,572 49777
Year ended 31 December 2020
Property and equipment (43) 18 (27
Trading losses 17,286 (8,308) 10,978
General provisions 8.864 17,389 26,253
Net deferred tax 26,107 11,097 37,204
The aging of company tax losses as at the reperting date is as shown below
Year of Loss brought Taxable Loss carried Year of
origination forward Losses forward expiry
2020 (57.619) (57.965) (115,584) 2028
2021
Deposits from customers
Group
2021 2020
Shs'000 Shs’000
Government and parastatals:
Payable within 90 days 2,704 529 2,658,898
Payable after 80 days and within one year 580 528
Payable after one year 4,937 695 4,892 233
Private sector and individuals:
Payable within 90 days 17,865,571 20,554,622
Payabte after 90 days and within one year 5,042,167 5,620,107
Payable after one year 6,264,402 6,218,104
37,714,914 39,944 490
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HF Group Pl
Financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Notes {continued)

27 Deposits from customers (continued)

The weighted average effective interest rate on interest bearing custemer deposits at 31 December
2021 was 4.03% {2020. 7.5%). The cartying value of customer deposits approximates their fair
value.

The summary of terms and conditions for the various categories of deposits are below:

(a)

(b)

(c}

(d)

(e)

(f

Maortgage scheme deposits — These are deposits under scheme arrangements where an
employer has provided funds for onward lending to their staff within set rules and regulations.
Funded schemes have a lower interest rate than the market whereas for unfunded schemes
the interest rates are usually at commercial rates and any discount on rates is based on
volumes.

Fixed term depaosits — This account targets both individuais and corporates that will not need
o access their funds for duration of time which is usually from 1 to 12 months. The minimum
operating balance is Shs 50,000.

Housing deveiopment bond ~ This account targets individuals who wish to save fowards home
ownership while at the same time earning attractive interest rates on their deposits. interest
earned is subjected to a 10% withholding tax consolidated amount of up to Shs 300,000 as
opposed 1o the normat rate of 15%. The minimum operating balance is Shs 50,000

Transactional depcsits — These accounts are characterized by unlimited access to funds and
they earn no interest. They attract fees based on transactions. The minimum opening balance
is Shs 200.

Current accounts — it allows untimited access to funds through varicus channels with the
cheque bock being the unique instrument used {6 access the funds. It earns no interest. The
minimum opening balance is Shs 2,000.

Savings accounts - A savings account that earns relatively higher interest. It has limited access
to funds. There's no minimum operating balance,

Deposits from banks

Group
2021 2020
Shs’000 Shs'000
Money market deposits 801,608 1,180,118

The weighted average interest rate on deposits from banks was 4.8% (2020: 5.0%)
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28 Other liabilities

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000
House sales deposits 303,827 318,413
Withholding tax payable 77,154 57,576
Sundry creditors 35,232 31,611
Trade creditors 417,786 272,306
Insurance premium payable 328,637 324,183
Deferred expenses - 19,859
Contractors payables 250,437 225528
Deposits due to the property
fund
Asset retirement obligation —
right of use asset 18,383 18,477
Other payables 250,382 144,600 341,828 287,763
1,690,838 1.410,654 341,828 267,763
29 Investment property
Group
2021 2020
Shs'000 Shs'000
Cost or valuation
At start of year 1,331,347 1,293,499
Additions during the year 171,756 37,848
Disposal (18,159) -
At end of year 1,483,944 1,331,347
Accumulated depreciation
At start of year 68,079 36,731
Charge for the year 24,545 31,348
Disposal (555} -
At end of year 92,069 68,078
Net book value at end of year 1,391,875 1,263,268

The investment property includes a commercial property that is leased to third parties and property
acquired by the banking subsidiary through foreclosures. The open market value of these properties
is Shs 687,100,000. The Bank acquired property worth Shs 143,000,000 during the year.
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29 Investment property {continued)

30

Each of the leases contains an initial non-cancellable perfod, with annual rents indexed to

consumer prices. No contingent rents are charged.

The commercial property was independentiy valued by Tyson's Limited in 2019. The valuer is
registered and licensed by the Valuers Registration Board of Kenya and has the relevant
experience and knowledge of valuing the various properties in the portfolio. The property was

valued at Shs 1,100,000,000.

Additions during the year were as follows for the purposes of the statement of cash flows:

Additions during the year

Borrowings

European Investment Bank {EIB)

Shelter Afrique

East African Development Bank

Arab Bank for Economic Development in Africa
Britam

Kenya Mortgage Refinance Company

Current
Non-current portion

Movement during the year

At start of year

Receipt

Interest expense charged during the year
Payments on interest

Payments on principal

At end of year

2021 2020
Shs’000 Shs’000
171,756 37,848
Group
2021 2020
Shs’000 Shs’000
1,523,134 2,012,722
615,376 726,714
452,891 655,200
208,549 233,961
1,022,661 -
474,908
4,298,349 3,628,227
3,888,548 2,151,896
400,801 1,476,231
4,298,349 3,628,227
3,628,227 5,803,723
1,514,574 -
377,649
{377,649)
(B44,452) (2,175,496)
4,298,349 3,628,227

During the year, the Group did not default on any of the loan repayment obligations from atl the

existing lenders.
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Notes {continued)

Borrowings {continued}

During the year, HFC Limited, the banking subsidiary of the Group was in breach of loan
covenants with the following institutions as described below:

Lender

Shelter Afrique

East African Development Bank

Arab Bank for Economic Development in
Africa (BADEA)
Britam

European Investment Bank

Covenant

Capital Adequacy
Ratic
Cost to income ratio

Capital Adequacy
Ratio
Single Obligor Ratio

Single Insider Ratio

Investment in land
and Building Ratio
Capital Adequacy
Ratic
Capital Adequacy
Ratio
Single Obligor Ratio

Single Insider Ratio

Capital Adequacy
Ratic
Non Performing
Loans to Total
Loans Ratio
Provisions for non-
performing loans

Required
limit

Minimum
of 14.5%
Maximum
of 60%
Minimum
of 14.5%
Maximum
of 25%
Maximum
of 20%
Maximum
of 20%
Minimum
of 14.5%
Minimum
of 14.5%
Maximum
of 25%
Maximum
of 20%
Minimum
of 14.5%
Maximum
of 15%

Maximum
25%

HFC ratio at

end of year
12.16%
126.48%
12.16%
40.04%
65.72%
51.68%
12.16%
12.16%
40.04%
65.72%
12.16%

34.53%

20.23%

The Bank has obtained waivers for the covenant breaches from Britam and EADB subsequent to
year end. For the other lenders expect EIB, the Bank has obtained waivers however the waivers on
some of the ratios do not cover 12 months after year end. Therefore these loans have been disclosed
as current as at 31 December 2021, and the required liquidity disclosures have been included under
Note 4{b) to these financial statements. The details of the directors’ plan to cure the breaches have

been disclosed in Note 2(a).
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30 Borrowings {continued)

31 December
2021
Lender

European
investment
Bank (EIB)
Sheiter Afrique
Limited

East African
Development
Bank {EADB)

Arab Bank for
Economic
Development in
Africa (BADEA)}

Britam

Kenya

Mortgage
Refinance
Company

Loan
balance
Shs’ 000

1,523,134

615,376

452,681

209,549

1,022,691

474,808

4,298,349

Current Non-  Currency
current
Shs’ 000  Shs’ 000
1,623,134 - UsDh
615,376 - UsSh
452,681 -
usb
209,549
UsD
1,022,691 - KES
65,107 400801 KES
3,888,548 409,801

104

Interest
rate

4.321%

6 months
ush
Libor

plus a
margin of
6.35%.

7.25%

6 months
Ust
Libgr

plus a
margin of
5%.
12.94%

515%

Issue
date

24 July
2017

28
December
2015

23
December
2016

5 March
2018

ot
February
2021

5 March
2018

Maturity
date

1 Qctober
2026

31 January
2026

23 December
2024

23 December

2028

01 February

2028

23 December
2028
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30 Borrowings {continued)

31 December Loan
2020 balance

Shs’ 000
European 2,012,722
Investment
Bank (EIB}
Shelter Afrigue 726,314
Limited
East African 655,200
Development
Bank (EADB)
Arab Bank for 233,591
Economic
Cevelopment in
Africa {BADEA)

3,628,227

Current
Shs’ 000

536,491

726,314

655,200

233991

2,151,996

Non-
current
Shs’ 000

1,476,231

1,476,231

Currency

ush

usD

Ush

ush

Issue
date

Interest
rate

4.321% 24 July

2017

28
December
2015

6.66%

725% 23
December

2016

5 March
2018

6.20%

Maturity
date

1 October
2026

31 January
2026

23 December
2024

23 December
2028

The interest rate for EIB and EADB loan is fixed whereas for the other loans, interest rate is based on Libor +

margin.

There are no assets held as security for the borrowings.

31 Capital and reserves

{a) Share capital

Autherised — 500,000,000 (2020:
500,000,600} ordinary shares of Shs

5 each

Issued and fully paid - 384,614,168
{2020: 384,614,168) ordinary shares

of Shs 5 each

NMovement in ordinary shares

At start and end of year {384,614,168)

In monetary terms:

At start and end of year

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
Shs' 000 Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000
2,500,000 2,500,060 2,500,000 2,500,000
1,923,071 1,923,071 1,923,071 1,923,071
384,614 384,614 384,614 384,614
1,823,071 1,923,071 1923,071 1,923,071

105



HF Group Ple
Financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Notes (continued)
31 Capital and reserves
{a} Share capital {continued)

The holders of ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets, are
entitled to receive dividends declared from time to time and are entitled to cne vote per share at
general meetings of the Company. Issued and fully paid ordinary shares were 384,614,168 as at
31 December 2021 {2020: 384,614,168). In 2019, 120,000 shares were issued under employee
share ownership program at Shs 10 per share leading to a share premium of Shs 600,000 (Shs §
per share).

{b}Share premium

This reserve arises when the shares of the Company are issued at 2 price higher than the nominal
{Par) value. In 2018, 120,000 shares were issued under employee share ownership program at Shs
10 per share leading to a share premium of Shs 600,000 (Shs 5 per share).

2021 2020
Shs’ 000 Shs' 000

At start of year 4,343,512 4,343 512
Issue of shares at a premium e

At and of year 4343512 4,343,512

{c)} Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserves inciude the net change in the fair value of land, buildings and motor
vehicle and are to be held until the property is derecognised

2021 2020

Shs’000 Shs'000

At start of year 1,012,125 881,903
Change in fair value during the period

Revaluation gain on buildings . 137,076

Deferred income tax : (6,854}

At end of year 1012,125 1,012,128
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31 Capital and reserves {continued)

{d) Statutory credit risk reserve
The loan loss reserve represents excess of the loans and advances impairment provision determined
in accordance with the Central Bank of Kenya's prudential guidelines compared with the requirements

of IFRS 9 - Financial insfruments. These reserves are not available for distribution.

The movement during the year is as below:

2021 2020

Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000

At start of year 3,653,888 2,668,069
Transfer (240.371) 985,819
At end of year 3,413,517 3,653,888

(e} Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve includes the cumnuiative net change in the fair value of debt investments and
treasury bonds held at FVOCI until the investment is derecognised when the net changes are recycled
to prefit or loss.

2021 2020
8hs'000 Shs’000
At start of year 13,872 67,012

Change in fair value during the year:
Fair value movement on treasury bonds classified as FVOCH (298} {75,772)
Less: Deferred income tax 80 22,732
At end of year 13,763 13,972

32 Government of Kenya income notes and loans

Government of Kenya - Income Notes 52,880 52,860

The Government of Kenya income notes relfate to a loan issued by the Government of Kenya and
Commonwealth Development Corporation on 15 July 1981. The lean is not secured by the
Group's assets and does not carry a redemption date. Interest is payable on the loan at a fixed
rate of 8.25% per annum.
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33 Cash flows from operating activities

Loss before income tax

Adjustments for:

Group's share of loss from investments in
joint ventures

Interest expense on lease liabilities
Depreciation of property and equipment
Amortisation of right of use asset
Depreciation of investment property
Amecrtisation of intangible assets
Property fund impairment

Loss on sale of property and equipment
Unrealised exchange gains on cash
Increase in customer and banks deposits

Increasef{decrease) in balances with Central
Bank of Kenya — Cash Reserve Ratio {CRR}

Movement in loans and advances to
customers

Purchase of Government securities
Sale of Government securities
Decrease in inventory

Increase in other assets

Increase/ (decrease} in other liabilities
Fair value loss on derivatives

Exchange rate difference

Net cash flows from operating activities
before tax

Inceme tax paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

Note

20

35
18
35
28
19
23

26
15

21

17
17
24
22
27

Group
2021 2020
Shs'000 Shs'000
(875,753} (1.775,882)
15,740 96,133
71,616 66,488
113,598 150,162
86,685 81,951
24 545 31,348
231,139 226,931
(55,956} 463,789
{1,192} (7)
{13,964)
(2.818,088) 3,206,371
92,624 261,520
2,305,848 1,781,265
{8.835,438) {4,530,520)
10,170,588 1,710,720
51,784 .
(91,351} {72,742)
280,184 (340,208}
28,982 -

1,287

(203,177} 1,353,355
{7,668) (197,157)
(210,846) 1,156,198

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following

at 31 December:

Cash in hand and bank (Note 16 (a)}

Balances due from banking institutions (Note 16 (a)}

Investments maturing within 80 days {Note 18)
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2021 2020
Shs'000 $hs'000
1,112,462 595,981
33,311 202,435
40,000 260,000
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33 Cash flows from operating activities {contfinued)}

Company
2021 2020
Shs'000 Shs'000
Loss before income tax {34,070} {239,335)
Depreciation on property and equipment 134 132
Impairment of investment in subsidiaries . 196,088
Decrease in other assets {8.712) 58,834
(Decrease) / Increase in other liabilities 41,167 {22,492}
Loss on sales of property and equipment . ‘
Net cash flows from operating activities before tax {1,481} 3,227
Inceme tax paid (5.265) {7,525)
Net cash flows from operating activities (6,746) {4,298)

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following
at 31 December:

Company
2021 2020
Shs'00 Shs'000
Cash in hand and bank 2,317 20,198

34 Off-balance sheet contingencies and commitments
(a} Guarantees, lefters of credit and commitments

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had issued guarantees and letters of credit in the ordinary
course of business to third parties as shown below.

2021 2020

Shs'000 Shs’000

Guarantees 876,588 685,516
Letters of credit 169,046 136,209
1,145,634 821,785

Commitments contracted for at the reporting date but not recognised in the financial statements
are as follows:
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34 Off-balance sheet contingencies and commitiments {continued)

{b}

Loans approved but not yet disbursed

2021
Shs’000

1,214,632

2020
Shs'000

1,284,318

The table below shows the contractual expiry by maturity of the Bank’s contingent liabilities. Each
undrawn loan commitment is included in the time band containing the earliest date it can be drawn

down.

31 December 2021
Guarantees

Letters of credit

Loans approved but not yet
dishursed

31 December 2020
Guarantees

Letters of credit

Loans approved but not yet
disbursed

Other contingent liabilities

0-3
month 3-8 6-12 1-5
3 months months Years Total
Shs' Shs’000 Shs'000 Shs' 000 Shes’ 000
000
36,080 151,015 615,480 174,013 976,588
. 135,780 33,2668 169,046
1,214,832 - 1,214,932
36,080 1,501,727 648,746 174,013 2,360,568
75,859 92.81¢ 478,800 40,047 685,616
136,20
9 - 136,209
1,284,318 - 1284318
212168 1,377,128 476,800 40,047 2,106,143

In the ordinary course of business, the Group is a defendant in various litigations and claims.
Although there can be no assurances, the Directors believe, based on the information currently
available and legal advice, that the claims can successfully be defended and therefore no
provision has been made in the financial statements.

The significant claims are described below:

ICEA LION Group (ICEA} against HFC Limited and others for a loss of Shs 120 million which were
withdrawn by the third defendant, ICEA's former Assistant General Manager, and deposited with N

Stockbrokers.
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34 Off-balance sheet contingencies and commitments (continued}

(b) Other contingent liabilities

Sharck Kher Mohamed sued HFC Limited for selling his property by public auction in 2000.
In 2015, the High Court awarded the plaintiff Shs 20 million plus interest from January 2000.
HFC appezled against the judgement to the Court of Appeal. The Court of Appeal in 2018
upheld the judgement of the High Court. The amount as at date of Court of Appeal ruling
was Shs 1.2 billion. During the year contact was established with the Claimant (Sharok
Kher} and negotiations resulted in an agreed settlerment of Shs 238 million. When served
with notification of the settiement, the Advocate representing the Principal Debtor filed an
application in the Supreme court on the issue of Representation. On 4 September 2020, the
Supreme Court dismissed the application on the issue of Representation for want of
jurisdiction. Following dismissal of the application, HF filed a consent entering judgement in
favour of Sharok Kher in the sum of Shs. 238 million to be paid in instalments as set out in
the Settlement Agreement. On 25 September 2020, the Supreme court adopted the said
consent as an order of the court. The Bank continues to comply with the seftlement terms,
subject to the conservatory orders issued by the High Court placing a lien of the sum of Shs
65 Million out of the settlement sum of Shs 238 million

35 Leases

{a

—

The Group as a lessee

The Group leases a number of branch and office premises. The leases typically run for a period
between 3 and 10 years, with an option to renew the lease after that date. For some leases,
payments are renegotiated every five years to reflect market rentals. Some leases provide for
additional rent payments that are based on changes in lecal price indices.

The Group also leases T equipment with contract terms of one o three years. These leases are

short-term and/or leases of low-value tems. The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for these leases.

Right-of-use assets

2021 2020

Shs’ 000 Shs’ 400

At start of year 805,594 895,644
Accumulated depreciation (439.105) {352,420)
At end of year 456,488 543,174
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35 Leases (continued}

Year ended 31 December
2021

Cost

At start of year and end of year

Accumulated depreciation
At start of year
Charge for the year

At end of year

Year ended 31 December
2020

Cost

At start and of year

Accumulated depreciation
At start and end of year
Charge for the year

At end of year

Leasehold Office IT Total
land premises equipment
$hs ‘000 Shs ‘000 Shs ‘000 Shs ‘000
54,612 621,079 219,903 895,594
54,612 621,079 219,903 895,594
(12,432) (285,361) (44 827) (352,420)
{462} (58,735) {27.488) {86,685)
{12,894} {354,096) {72,115) (439,105}
41,718 266,983 147,788 456,488
54,612 621,079 218,803 895,584
{11,971) {237.045) (11,453} {260,469)
(461) {58,3186) (33,174} {91,951)
{12 ,432) (255,361) (44,827 (352,420)
42,180 325,718 175,276 543,174
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35

(a)

{b

—

{c)

(d}

Leases {continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

At 31 December 2021, the fulure minimum lease payments under non-canceliabie operating

leases were payable as follows:

Maturity analysis — Contractual undiscounted cash flows

Less than one year
Between one and five years
More than five years

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Leases under IFRS 16

Interest on lease habiifies

Interest on asset retirement obligation
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets

Amounts recognised in statement of cash flows

Total cash outflow for leases

Lease liabilities

Current
Nen-current

Movement in lease liabilities
At start of year
Interest expense charged

Principal elements of lease payments

At end of year

113

2021 2020
Shs 000 Shs *000
148,019 139,367
654,111 720,861
30,184 84,141
832,314 944,369
71,616 66,488
1,906 1,684
86,685 91,951
142,964 130,488
142,810 142,921
436,593 507,830
579,403 650,751
650,751 714,751
71,616 66,488
(142,964)  (130,488)
579,403 650,751
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38 Leases {continued)

{d) Lease liabilities {continued}

36

Some leases of office premises contain extension options exercisable by the Group up to one
year before the end of the non-cancellable contract period. Where practicable, the Group seeks
to include extension options in new leases to provide operational flexibility. The extension aptions
held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the lessors. The Group assesses at lease
commencement date whether it is reasonably certain o exercise the extension options. The
Group reassesses whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the options if there is a significant
event or significant changes in circumstances within its control.

The Group as a lessor
The Group leases out part of its property. The Group has classified these leases as operating
leases, because they do not transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to the
ownership of the assets.

Rental income earned during the period was Shs.42,342,000 {2020: Shs 50,844,927).

The following table sets out a maturity analysis of lease payments, showing the undiscounted
lease payments to be received after the reporting date:

Operating leases under IFRS 16 2021 2020
Shs'000 Shs'000
Within one year 73,923 80,920
One to five years 134,118 198,332
After five years - 378
208,033 279,630

Leases are negotiated for an average term of 6 years and rentals are reviewed every two years.
The leases are cancellable with a penalty when the tenants do not give three months’ notice to
vacate the premises.

Related parties and related party transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other parly or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operation decisions, or
one other party controls both. HF Group Plc is listed on the Nairobi Securities Exchange. The
largest shareholder of HF Group Plc is Britam Holdings Plc, which has 48% shareholding. There
are other companies which are related to HFC Limited through common shareholdings or
common directorships.

Key management personnel are those individuals who have the authority and responsibility for
planning and exercising power to directly or indirectly control the activities of the Group {including
subsidiaries) and its employees. The Group considers the Board of Directors, executive and non-
executive directors, to be key management personnel for the purposes of IAS 24 - related party
disclosures.

The Group enters into transactions, arrangements and agreements involving directors, serior
management and their related concerns in the ordinary ceurse of business.
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36 Related parties and related party transactions (continued)

{a} Loans to key management personnel

At start of year
Loans disbursed
Repaymenis

At end of year

Current
Non - current

Total

{b} Loans to employees

At start of year
Loans advanced during the year
Loans repaymenis received

At end of year

Comprising
Montgages and advances

Personal loans
Staff car loans

Current
Non - current

Total

Group
2021 2020
Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000
159,741 156,493
82,943 34,646
{41,751) (31,388)
200,933 159,741
32,637 31716
168,296 128,025
200,833 159,741
Group
2021 2020
Shs'000 Shs'000
783,613 813,449
404,169 242,248
{425,887) {262,084)
771,785 793,613
565,842 591,323
183,663 131,686
12,300 10,604
771,785 793,613
200,867 202,280
571,128 591,323
771,785 793,613

Interest income arising from these employees’ facilities amounted to Shs 52,936,000 {2020: Shs

56,5857,318).
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36

Related parties and related party transactions {continued)

{c} Remuneration to directors and key management personnel

(d}

{s)

Group

2021 2020
Shs’ 000 Shs’ 000

Remuneration to executive directors
Company* 50,293 51,144
Group** 16,865 16,027
Remuneration to key management 140,807 133,485
207,965 198,656

* Remuneration to the executive directors of the parent Company, HF Group Plc

** Remuneration to the executive directors of the subsidiary companies in the Group

Group
2021 2020
Shs' 000 Shs’ 000
Remuneration to key management.
Salaries and short-term benefits 140 807 133,485
Pension 21162 22277
161,969 155,762

Compensation to senior management including executive directors for the year ended 31
Cecember 2021 amounted to Shs xow (2020: Shs 155,762,104).

Transactions with Britam Insurance Company (Kenya) Limited

Group
2021 2020
Shs' 000 Shs' 000
Bank balances held with BFC Limited 64,582 96,246
Transactions with Britam Asset Managers Limited
Bank balances held with HFC Limited 1,208,330
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{f} Transactions with Housing Finance Development and Investment LLP

{9}

(h)

B

(i)

(k)

Bank balances held with HFC Limited
Loans and other receivables

Transactions with Precious Heights Limited

Bank balances held with HFC Limited

Transactions with Kahawa Downs Limited

Bank balances held with HFC Limited

Transactions with Housing Finance Development and Investment Property Fund

Bank balances held with HFC Limited

Transactions with Pioneer International College

Loans and advances held with HFC Limited

Transactions with Agricultural and Industrial Holdings Ltd

Loans and advances held with HFC Limited

17

Group
2021 2020
Shs’000 Shs’000
12,772 13,501
2,168,658 2,093,121
2,181,430 2,106,622
6.889 4,865
86,263 62,366
175,792 32,318
102,288 136,186
97,282 113,137
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Notes {continued}
Derivative Liabilities

The Bank's derivative financial instruments are entgred into for trading purposes. The fair value of all
derivatives is recognised in the statement of financial position and is enly netted to the extent that there is
both a legal right of set-off and an intention to settie on a net basis, or the intention o realise the derivative
asset and settie the derivative liability simultaneously. At 31 December 2021 all derivatives are to be seftled
on a gross basis.

Notional 2021 2020
contract
amount
Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs'000
Foreign exchange contracts 2,507,778 28,982
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